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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the FIFTY THIRD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF ULTRAMARINE 
& PIGMENTS LIMITED will be held at THE MYSORE ASSOCIATION AUDITORIUM, Mysore Associati on, 393 Bhaudaji 
Road, Matunga – C.  Rly, Mumbai – 400019 on Thursday the 7th day of August, 2014 at 3.30 p.m. to transact the 
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS :

1.  To consider and adopt the audited fi nancial statement of the Company for the fi nancial year ended March 31, 
2014, the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors’ thereon.

2. To declare Dividend.

3.  To appoint a Director in place of Mr. S. Sridhar (DIN: 00091424), who reti res by rotati on and, being eligible, 
off ers himself for re-appointment.

4.  To appoint M/s. CNK & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, reti ring statutory auditors to hold offi  ce as 
joint auditors from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeti ng unti l the conclusion of next Annual General 
Meeti ng and M/s. Brahmayya & Co, Chartered Accountants as statutory auditors to hold offi  ce from the 
conclusion of this Annual General Meeti ng unti l the conclusion of sixth Annual General Meeti ng to be held 
aft er this meeti ng, subject to rati fi cati on at every Annual General Meeti ng and to fi x their remunerati on for the 
fi nancial year ending 31st March, 2015.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5.  To consider and if thought fi t, to pass with or without modifi cati on(s), the following resoluti on as an Ordinary 
Resoluti on:

   “RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Secti ons 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under (including any statutory modifi cati on(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the ti me being in force) read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, Dr. Gopakumar G. Nair 
(DIN: 00092637), Director of the Company who reti res by rotati on at the Annual General Meeti ng, be and is 
hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold offi  ce for fi ve consecuti ve years for a 
term up to Annual General Meeti ng for the year 2019.”

6.  To consider and if thought fi t, to pass with or without modifi cati on(s), the following resoluti on as an Ordinary 
Resoluti on:

  “RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Secti ons 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under (including any statutory modifi cati on(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the ti me being in force) read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Vinod G. Nehemiah 
(DIN: 00379444),  Director of the Company who reti res by rotati on at the Annual General Meeti ng, be and is 
hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold offi  ce for fi ve consecuti ve years for a 
term up to Annual General Meeti ng for the year 2019.”

7.  To consider and if thought fi t, to pass with or without modifi cati on(s), the following resoluti on as an Ordinary 
Resoluti on:

  “RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Secti ons 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under (including any statutory modifi cati on(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the ti me being in force) read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Nimish U. Patel 
(DIN: 00039549), Director of the Company in respect of whom the Company has received a noti ce in writi ng from 
a member proposing his candidature for the offi  ce of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent 
Director of the Company to hold offi  ce for fi ve consecuti ve years for a term up to Annual General Meeti ng for 
the year 2019.”
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8.  To consider and if thought fi t, to pass with or without modifi cati on(s), the following resoluti on as an Ordinary 
Resoluti on:

  “RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Secti ons 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under (including any statutory modifi cati on(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the ti me being in force) read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. T.R Madhavan 
(DIN: 00163992), Director of the Company in respect of whom the Company has received a noti ce in writi ng from 
a member proposing his candidature for the offi  ce of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent 
Director of the Company to hold offi  ce for fi ve consecuti ve years for a term up to Annual General Meeti ng for 
the year 2019.”

9.  To consider and if thought fi t, to pass with or without modifi cati on(s), the following resoluti on as an Ordinary 
Resoluti on:

  “RESOLVED THAT Pursuant to the provisions of Secti on 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifi cati on(s) or 
re-enactment thereof, for the ti me being in force), the Cost Auditor appointed by the Board of Directors of 
the Company, to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the fi nancial year ending March 31, 
2015, be paid the remunerati on as set out in the statement annexed to the Noti ce convening this Meeti ng.

  RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and 
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give eff ect to this resoluti on.”    

NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE 
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.  A person can act as proxy on behalf of members 
not exceeding fi ft y (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten per cent of the total share capital of 
the Company.

2. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Secti on 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, which sets out details relati ng 
to Special Business at the meeti ng, is annexed hereto.

3. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 29th July, 
2014 to 7th August, 2014 (both days inclusive) for determining the names of members eligible for dividend, if 
approved. In respect of shares held in electronic form, the dividend will be paid to those shareholders whose 
names appear at the close of business hours on 28th day of July, 2014 as benefi cial owner as per the list 
furnished by the Depository Parti cipants for the purpose.

4. The Proxy form duly completed and signed should be deposited at the Registered offi  ce of the Company at 
least 48 hours before the commencement of the meeti ng.

5. Members holding shares in electronic form are hereby informed that bank parti culars registered against their 
respecti ve depository accounts will be used by the Company for payment of dividend. The Company or its 
Registrars cannot act on any request received directly from the Members holding shares in electronic form 
for any change of bank parti culars or bank mandates. Such changes are to be advised only to the Depository 
Parti cipant of the Members. Members holding shares in physical form and desirous of either registering bank 
parti culars or changing bank parti culars already registered against their respecti ve folios for payment of 
dividend are requested to write to the Company/Registrars & Share Agent of the Company.

6. Pursuant to the provisions of Secti on 205A(5) & 205(c) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has transferred 
the unpaid or unclaimed dividend, if any, for the fi nancial year 1995-96 to 2005-06 and 2006-07 (Interim 
Dividend) to the Investor Educati on and Protecti on Fund (The IEPF) established by the Central Government. 
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 No claims shall lie against the Company or the said fund in respect of any amounts which were unclaimed and 
unpaid for a period of 7 years from the dates that they fi rst became due for payment and no payment shall be 
made in respect of any such claims.

7. Details under Clause 49 of the Listi ng Agreement with the Stock Exchange in respect of the Directors seeking 
appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeti ng, forms integral part of the noti ce. The Directors 
have furnished the requisite declarati ons for their appointment/re-appointment.

8. Electronic copy of the Annual Report for 2014 is being sent to all the members whose email IDs are registered 
with the Company/Depository Parti cipant(s) for communicati on purposes unless any member has requested 
for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email address, physical copies of the 
Annual Report for 2014 is being sent in the permitt ed mode.

9. Electronic copy of the Noti ce of the 53rd Annual General Meeti ng of the Company inter alia indicati ng the 
process and manner of e-voti ng along with Att endance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all the members 
whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Parti cipant(s) for communicati on purposes 
unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their 
email address, physical copies of the Noti ce of the 53rd Annual General Meeti ng of the Company inter alia 
indicati ng the process and manner of e-voti ng along with Att endance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent in the 
permitt ed mode.

10. Members may also note that the Noti ce of the 53rd Annual General Meeti ng and the Annual Report for 2013-14 
will also be available on the Company’s website for download. 

11. Members desiring any clarifi cati on on accounts are requested to write to the Company at an early date so as 
to enable the Company to keep the informati on ready.

12.  The Equity shares of the Company are mandated for trading in the compulsory demat mode. The ISIN No. 
allott ed for the Company’s share is INE405A01021.

13.  Members/Proxies are requested to bring att endance slip along with their copy of Annual Report to the 
Meeti ng.

14. Voti ng through electronic means

 I.  In compliance with provisions of Secti on 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administrati on) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to provide members facility 
to exercise their right to vote at the 53rd Annual General Meeti ng (AGM) by electronic means and the 
business may be transacted through e-Voti ng Services provided by Central Depository Services of India 
Limited (CDSL):

  The instructi ons for members for voti ng electronically are as under:-

 A. In case of members receiving e-mail:

  (i) Log on to the e-voti ng website www.evoti ngindia.com

  (ii) Click on “Shareholders” tab.

  (iii)  Now, select the Electronic Voti ng Sequence Number - “EVSN” along with “COMPANY NAME” from 
the drop down menu and click on “SUBMIT”

  (iv)  Now Enter your User ID (For CDSL: 16 digits benefi ciary ID, For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 
8 Digits Client ID, Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered 
with the Company and then enter the Captcha Code as displayed and Click on Login.

  (v)  If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to www.evoti ngindia.com and casted 
your vote earlier for EVSN of any company, then your existi ng password is to be used. If you are a 
fi rst ti me user follow the steps given below.
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  (vi)  Now, fi ll up the following details in the appropriate boxes:

For Members holding shares 
in Demat Form

For Members holding shares 
in Physical Form

PAN* Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable 
for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

DOB# Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the company records 
for the said demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format.

Dividend Bank 
Details#

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the company 
records for the said demat account or folio.

*   Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Parti cipant are requested 
to use the Default Value: [MNPQL5678A] in the PAN fi eld. 

#   Please enter any one of the details in order to login. In case either of the details are not recorded 
with the depository please enter the Default Value: [MNPQL5678A] in the Dividend Bank details fi eld.

  (vii) Aft er entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

  (viii) Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly the EVSN selecti on screen. However, 
members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creati on’ menu wherein they are 
required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password fi eld. Kindly note that this 
password is to be also used by the demat holders for voti ng for resoluti ons of any other company on 
which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voti ng through CDSL platf orm. It is 
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to 
keep your password confi denti al.

  (ix) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voti ng on the resoluti ons 
contained in this Noti ce.

  (x) Click on the relevant EVSN on which you choose to vote.

  (xi) On the voti ng page, you will see Resoluti on Descripti on and against the same the opti on “YES/NO” 
for voti ng. Select the opti on YES or NO as desired. The opti on YES implies that you assent to the 
Resoluti on and opti on NO implies that you dissent to the Resoluti on.

  (xii) Click on the “Resoluti ons File Link” if you wish to view the enti re Resoluti ons.

  (xiii) Aft er selecti ng the resoluti on you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confi rmati on box 
will be displayed. If you wish to confi rm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on 
“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

  (xiv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resoluti on, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

  (xv) You can also take out a print of the voti ng done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” opti on on 
the Voti ng page.

  (xvi) If the Demat account holder has forgott en the changed password then Enter the User ID and Captcha 
Code click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

  (xvii) Insti tuti onal shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to log on to 
htt ps://www.evoti ngindia.co.in and register themselves as Corporates. Aft er receiving the login details 
they have to link the account(s) which they wish to vote on and then cast their vote. They should 
upload a scanned copy of the Board Resoluti on and Power of Att orney (POA) which they have issued 
in favour of the Custodian, if any, in PDF format in the system for the scruti nizer to verify the same.
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 B. In case of members receiving the physical copy:

   Please follow all steps from Sl. No. (i) to Sl. No. (xvii) above to cast vote.

 C.  The voti ng period begins on August 1, 2014 (9.00 a.m) and ends on August 3, 2014 (5.00 p.m). During this 
period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as 
on the cut-off  date June 13, 2014 (end of the day), may cast their vote electronically. The e-voti ng module 
shall be disabled by CDSL for voti ng thereaft er.

 D.  In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voti ng, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questi ons 
(“FAQs”) and e-voti ng manual available at www.evoti ngindia.co.in under help secti on or write an email to 
helpdesk.evoti ng@cdslindia.com.

 E.  The voti ng rights of shareholders shall be in proporti on to their shares of the paid up equity share capital 
of the Company as on the cut-off  date (record date) of June 13, 2014.

 F.  Mr. Manoj Mimani, Practi sing Company Secreatary (Membership No. 17083) has been appointed as the 
Scruti nizer to scruti nize the e-voti ng process in a fair and transparent manner.

 G.  The Scruti nizer shall within a period not exceeding three (3) working days from the conclusion of the 
e-voti ng period unblock the votes in the presence of witnesses not in the employment of the Company 
and make a Scruti nizer’s Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of 
the Company.

 H.  The Results shall be declared on or aft er the AGM of the Company. The Results declared along with the 
Scruti nizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.ultramarinepigments.net and on 
the website of CDSL within two (2) days of passing of the resoluti ons at the AGM of the Company and 
communicated to the Stock Exchanges, where the shares are listed.

15.  All documents referred to in the accompanying Noti ce and the Explanatory Statement shall be open for 
inspecti on at the Registered Offi  ce of the Company during normal business hours (9.00 am to 5.00 pm) on all 
working days except Saturday, up to and including the date of the Annual General Meeti ng of the Company.
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I.  EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

 ITEM No. 5

  Dr. Gopakumar G. Nair has been a Director of the company since 25th May 1990. He is also the Chairman of 
Audit Committ ee of the Board of Directors. He is LLB from Mumbai University, M.Sc. (Organic Chem.), Sagar 
University, Ph. D. (Org. Chem.), Nati onal Chemical Laboratory, Pune University. Dr. Nair has immense knowledge 
and experience on various matt ers which was valued by the Board of Directors. He is also considered to be an 
authority on matt ers concerning Intellectual Property, parti cularly Patents. 

  Dr. Nair holds directorship and membership of the Committ ees of the Board of Directors of the below menti oned 
Companies in India:

  Director in Sequent Scienti fi c Limited, Glochem Industries Limited, Gnanlex Hermeneuti cs Private Limited 
(Chairman). Member of Audit Committ ee and Shareholder Grievance Committ ee of Sequent Scienti fi c Limited.

 Dr. Nair holds by himself 18,000 equity shares in the Company. 

  Dr. Nair reti res by rotati on at the ensuing Annual General Meeti ng under the erstwhile applicable provisions of 
Companies Act, 1956. In terms of Secti on 149 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 
Dr. Nair being eligible and off ering himself for appointment, is proposed to be appointed as an Independent 
Director for fi ve consecuti ve years for a term up to Annual General Meeti ng for the year 2019.   

  In the opinion of the Board, Dr. Nair fulfi lls the conditi ons specifi ed in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 
made there under for his appointment as an Independent Director of the Company and is independent of 
the management. Copy of the draft  lett er for appointment of Dr. Nair as an Independent Director setti  ng out 
the terms and conditi ons would be available for inspecti on without any fee by the members at the Registered 
Offi  ce of the Company during normal business hours on any working day.

  The Board considers that his conti nued associati on would be of immense benefi t to the Company and it is 
desirable to conti nue to avail services of Dr. Nair as an Independent Director. 

  Accordingly, the Board recommends the resoluti on in relati on to appointment of Dr. Nair as an Independent 
Director, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company.

  Except Dr. Nair, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and 
their relati ves is concerned or interested, fi nancial or otherwise, in the resoluti on set out at Item No. 5. This 
Explanatory Statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under Clause 49 of the Listi ng agreement with the 
Stock Exchange.

 ITEM No. 6

 Mr. Vinod G. Nehemiah was appointed as a Director of the Company in the year 2013. Mr. Nehemiah holds 
Masters in Chemical Engineering from Massachusett s Insti tute of Technology, Boston, USA and worked as 
Research Scienti st in a Multi nati onal Company and he is a fi rst generati on entrepreneur.    

 Mr. Nehemiah holds by himself 1,77,600 equity shares in the Company. 

 Mr. Nehemiah is also a Director in SNAP NATURAL AND ALGINATE PRODUCTS PRIVATE LTD., 

 Mr. Nehemiah reti res by rotati on at the ensuing Annual General Meeti ng under the erstwhile applicable 
provisions of Companies Act, 1956. In terms of Secti on 149 and any other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Nehemiah being eligible and off ering himself for appointment, is proposed to be 
appointed as an Independent Director for fi ve consecuti ve years for a term up to Annual General Meeti ng for 
the year 2019.   
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 In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Nehemiah fulfi lls the conditi ons specifi ed in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 
made there under for his appointment as an Independent Director of the Company and is independent of the 
management. Copy of the draft  lett er for appointment of Mr. Nehemiah as an Independent Director setti  ng out 
the terms and conditi ons would be available for inspecti on without any fee by the members at the Registered 
Offi  ce of the Company during normal business hours on any working day.

 The Board considers that his conti nued associati on would be of immense benefi t to the Company and it is 
desirable to conti nue to avail services of Mr. Nehemiah as an Independent Director. 

 Accordingly, the Board recommends the resoluti on in relati on to appointment of Mr. Nehemiah as an 
Independent Director, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company.

 Except Mr. Nehemiah, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
and their relati ves is concerned or interested, fi nancial or otherwise, in the resoluti on set out at Item No.6. This 
Explanatory Statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under Clause 49 of the Listi ng agreement with the 
Stock Exchange.

 ITEM No. 7

 Mr. Nimish U. Patel has been a Director of the Company since 28th October, 2003. He is also a member of Audit 
Committ ee of the Board of Directors of the Company.  Mr. Patel is BBA, MBA (USA) and possesses more than 
two decades of experience in Texti le and Chemical Sectors.  

 Mr. Patel holds directorship and membership of the Committ ees of the Board of Directors of the below 
menti oned Companies in India:

 Director in Shri Dinesh Mills Limited, Dinesh Remedies Limited, Transpek Industry Limited, Pankakamlini  
Investments Pvt. Ltd. Member of Share Transfer Committ ee of Transpek Industry Ltd.  

 Mr. Nimish Patel holds by himself 52,589 equity shares in the Company. 

 Mr. Nimish Patel is a Director whose period of offi  ce is liable to determinati on by reti rement of directors 
by rotati on under the erstwhile applicable provisions of Companies Act, 1956. In terms of Secti on 149 and 
any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Patel being eligible and off ering himself for 
appointment, is proposed to be appointed as an Independent Director for fi ve consecuti ve years for a term up 
to Annual General Meeti ng for the year 2019. A noti ce has been received from a member proposing Mr. Patel 
as a candidate for the offi  ce of Director of the Company.  

 In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Patel fulfi lls the conditi ons specifi ed in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 
made there under for his appointment as an Independent Director of the Company and is independent of the 
management. Copy of the draft  lett er for appointment of Mr. Patel as an Independent Director setti  ng out 
the terms and conditi ons would be available for inspecti on without any fee by the members at the Registered 
Offi  ce of the Company during normal business hours on any working day.

 The Board considers that his conti nued associati on would be of immense benefi t to the Company and it is 
desirable to conti nue to avail services of Mr. Patel as an Independent Director. 

 Accordingly, the Board recommends the resoluti on in relati on to appointment of Mr. Patel as an Independent 
Director, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company.

 Except Mr. Patel, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and 
their relati ves is concerned or interested, fi nancial or otherwise, in the resoluti on set out at Item No. 7. This 
Explanatory Statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under Clause 49 of the Listi ng agreement with the 
Stock Exchange.
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 ITEM No. 8

 Mr. T.R Madhavan joined the Board as an additi onal Director of the Company on 11th February, 2013. He is also 
a member of Audit Committ ee of the Board of Directors of the Company. Mr. Madhavan is a BE & CAIIB. He 
has 40 years of rich experience in the fi eld of fi nance and banking and held senior positi on in Public & Private 
sector Banks. Mr. Madhavan is the former Executi ve Chairman of Centrum Capital Limited, prior to this he was 
the Managing Director of Dhanalaxmi Bank Limited.

 Mr. Madhavan holds by himself 600 equity shares in the Company. 

 Mr. Madhavan is also a Director in CentrumDirect Limited.

 Mr. Madhavan is a Director whose period of offi  ce is liable to determinati on by reti rement of directors by 
rotati on under the erstwhile applicable provisions of Companies Act, 1956. In terms of Secti on 149 and any 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Madhavan being eligible and off ering himself 
for appointment, is proposed to be appointed as an Independent Director for fi ve consecuti ve years for a 
term up to Annual General Meeti ng for the year 2019. A noti ce has been received from a member proposing 
Mr. Madhavan as a candidate for the offi  ce of Director of the Company.  

 In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Madhavan fulfi lls the conditi ons specifi ed in the Companies Act, 2013 and 
rules made there under for his appointment as an Independent Director of the Company and is independent 
of the management. Copy of the draft  lett er for appointment of Mr. Madhavan as an Independent Director 
setti  ng out the terms and conditi ons would be available for inspecti on without any fee by the members at the 
Registered Offi  ce of the Company during normal business hours on any working day.

 The Board considers that his conti nued associati on would be of immense benefi t to the Company and it is 
desirable to conti nue to avail services of Mr. Madhavan as an Independent Director. 

 Accordingly, the Board recommends the resoluti on in relati on to appointment of Mr. Madhavan as an 
Independent Director, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company.

 Except Mr. Madhavan, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
and their relati ves is concerned or interested, fi nancial or otherwise, in the resoluti on set out at Item No. 8. 
This Explanatory Statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under Clause 49 of the Listi ng agreement with 
the Stock Exchange.

 ITEM No. 9

 The Board, on the recommendati on of Audit Committ ee, has approved the appointment and remunerati on of 
the Cost Auditor to conduct the audit of cost records of the Company for the fi nancial year ending March 31, 
2015 as per the following details;

Name of  the Cost  Auditor Audit Fees (Rs.)

Mr. G. Sundaresan
(Membership No. 11733)

50,000/-

 The above fees are exclusive of travel and out of pocket expenses.

 In accordance with the provisions of Secti on 148 of the Act read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, the remunerati on payable to the Cost Auditor has to be rati fi ed by the Shareholders of the Company.

 Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an ordinary resoluti on as set out at Item No. 9 of 
the Noti ce for rati fi cati on of the remunerati on payable to the Cost Auditor for the fi nancial year ending 
March 31, 2015.

 None of the Directors / Key Managerial personnel of the Company / their relati ves are, in any way, concerned 
or interested, fi nancially or otherwise, in the resoluti on set out at Item No. 9  of the Noti ce.
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II. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT AS REQUIRED 
UNDER CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT WITH THE STOCK EXCHANGE: 

 Re-appointment of Mr. S. Sridhar (Item No.3)

 In terms of Secti on 149, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, eff ecti ve 
from 01.04.2014, for the purpose of determining the directors liable to reti re by rotati on, the Independent 
Directors shall not be included in the total number of directors of the Company. Mr. S. Sridhar( DIN: 00091424)  
shall accordingly reti re at the forthcoming Annual General Meeti ng and being eligible off ers himself for 
re-appointment.

 Mr. S. Sridhar joined the Board of Directors as a Joint Managing Director for a period of fi ve years with eff ect 
from 1st August, 2012. The said appointment was approved by the members of the Company at their 51st 
Annual General Meeti ng held on 13th August, 2012 by way of an Ordinary Resoluti on. Mr. S. Sridhar is a science 
graduate, a Chartered Accountant and a reputed businessman and has been Director of the Company since 24th 
May, 1998. He has more than 3 decades of experience and has a good understanding of the petrochemicals, 
paints, pigments and resins industries. 

 Mr. S. Sridhar holds 15,03,569 equity shares in the Company.     

 Upon his re-appointment as a Director, Mr. S. Sridhar shall conti nue to hold offi  ce as a Joint Managing Director. 
Accordingly, the Board recommends his re-appointment.

 None of the Directors of the Company except Mr. S. Sridhar, the appointee and Mr. S. Santhanam, none of 
the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relati ves is concerned or interested, 
fi nancial or otherwise, in the ordinary business set out at Item No. 3 of the Noti ce.     

 Appointment of Independent Directors (Item nos. 5 to 8)

 For the details of Dr. Gopakumar G Nair, Mr. Vinod G. Nehemiah, Mr. Nimish U. Patel and Mr. T.R Madhavan, 
please refer to the respecti ve Explanatory Statement of the Special Business set out at Item No. 5 to 8 of the 
Noti ce of Annual General Meeti ng pursuant to Secti on 102 of the Companies Act, 2013.

By the Order of the Board
For ULTRAMARINE & PIGMENTS LIMITED

Kishore Kumar Sahoo
Company Secretary

Chennai 
27th May, 2014
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT, MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

To
The Members,
Ultramarine & Pigments Ltd.

Your Directors have pleasure in presenti ng their FIFTYTHIRD ANNUAL REPORT AND AUDITED STATEMENT OF 
ACCOUNTS of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2014. 

Rs in Lakhs

Financial  Results FY 2013-14 FY 2012-13

Gross Profi t Before Finance Costs, Depreciati on & Amorti sati on 2816 2469

Finance costs  (96) (156)

Profi t before Depreciati on, Amorti sati on and Tax   2720 2313

Depreciati on & Amorti sati on (561) (576)

Profi t  before Tax 2159 1737

Current Tax Expense (755) (588)

Profi t  aft er Current Tax 1404 1149

Provision for Deferred Tax 37 15

Excess provision for earlier years /MAT Credit (1) 48

Profi t  aft er  Tax  1439 1212

Balance in  Profi t & Loss Account 4093 3779

Profi t  available  for  appropriati on 5532 4991

Appropriati ons:

Dividend  (730) (657)

Tax on Dividends (124) (111)

General  Reserve (150) (130)

Closing  Balance  4528 4093

DIVIDEND

Your Directors have recommended a Dividend of Rs. 2.50/- per share of the nominal value of Rs.2/- each for the 
year ended March 31, 2014 [previous year Rs. 2.25/-Per Share of nominal value Rs 2/-per share]. The payment 
of dividend together with the tax thereon absorbed a sum of Rs. 854.06 Lakhs. The Dividend, if declared, by the 
members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeti ng will be paid to all the eligible members by 14th August 2014.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:

OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The overall performance of the Company was bett er 
and there is marked improvement in the ITES division. 
This was achieved in spite of depressed economic 
conditi ons in 2013-14. For the fi rst ti me, the total 
revenue has crossed Rs. 150 crores and the profi t before 
tax improved by 24% to Rs. 21.55 crores.

Pigment Division

In spite of the economic slowdown in 2013-14, sales of 
Pigments increased from 4230 MT in 2012–13 to 4542 
MT in 2013 - 14, and the division achieved a net revenue 
of Rs. 5880 lakhs as compared to Rs. 5626 lakhs. There 
was an all-round increase in input cost that has aff ected 
the profi tability of this division. Due to the renewed 
thrust given by the Company in the export market, 
improvements in realizati on have helped to off set the 
input cost to a certain extent. 

Surfactants Division

The Company has achieved net revenue (including 
processing) of Rs. 7024 lakhs during the fi nancial year 
ended March 31, 2014 as against Rs. 6705 lakhs in the 
previous year. The revenue and the margin have been 
aff ected due to (i) errati c and limited supply of key raw 
material namely,  Alpha Olefi n (100% imported) (ii) steep 
depreciati on in rupee value and  volati le exchange rates 
prevailing in 2013-14. The increase in input costs could 
not be passed on to the customers resulti ng in erosion 
of margin.

Wind Mill Generati on

There was a reducti on by 32% in terms of total units 
generated during the year resulti ng in lower revenue 
and an increase in loss. This was due to the constraints 
faced by Tamil Nadu Electricity Board (TNEB) for 
evacuati on of power generated during peak season and 
limited State Grid capacity. During the peak season, the 
wind mills were shut down resulti ng in producti on loss 
of approximately 12 lakhs units.   

Review of IT Division

During the year under review, this division has reported 
an income of Rs. 2756 lakhs, an increase of 49% over last 
year. The profi tability has improved considerably due to 
bett er margin and also to favourable exchange rate for 

export. One of the divisions which had been operati ng 
under SEZ exited during the year and presently all the 
divisions are operati ng under one roof resulti ng in 
bett er synergy of operati on. 

EXPORTS

Export earnings have increased by 14% (Rs. 4729 lakhs 
as against Rs. 4166 lakhs) which was on account of 
bett er performance of ITES divisions. The Company 
conti nues to increase focus on the export market & 
during the year, has parti cipated in internati onal 
exhibiti ons. There has been good response from South 
Korea & UK.   

Earnings Per Share (EPS) is at Rs. 4.93 (Previous 
Year Rs. 4.15) and Cash Earnings Per Share (CEPS) is 
Rs. 6.85 (Previous Year Rs. 6.12) on the paid up value of 
Rs. 2/- per share. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Company has established and maintained adequate 
internal controls over the fi nancial reporti ng. Internal 
controls have been designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of fi nancial reporti ng 
and preparati on of fi nancial statements in accordance 
with accounti ng principles generally accepted (GAAP) 
in India.  The Company has an internal control system 
commensurate with the size and nature of the business.  

The Audit Committ ee of the Company provides 
reassurance to the Board on the existence of an eff ecti ve 
internal control environment.

The Company’s internal control system is supported by 
laid out systems, self-monitoring mechanisms and is 
audited by an external fi rm as part of the internal audit 
functi on. Appropriate acti ons are taken by management 
to correct defi ciencies as they are identi fi ed. We are in 
the process of upgrading the systems and procedures 
to further enhance all operati ng systems and controls.

PERSONNEL

Industrial Relati ons were quite harmonious through-
out the year under review. The directors earnestly 
appreciate the contributi ons and initi ati ves taken by 
the employees at all levels for the company’s improved 
performance year aft er year.       
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OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Gujarat Project

As stated in our last Annual Report, we have obtained 
possession certi fi cate for the land. Both power and 
water at this industrial site are yet to be made available. 

RISKS AND CONCERNS

1. Domesti c market for pigments conti nued to pose 
challenge in terms of i) shrinking demand for 
laundry and white washing applicati on ii) slow-
down in manufacturing sector aff ecti ng the off -take 
in the industrial segment.

2. Surfactant division faces an errati c and limited 
supply of Alpha Olefi n, a key material and this has 
had an adverse impact on expanding the customer 
base.

3. Retail sales eff ort involves huge outlays for sales 
promoti on and distributi on and this has a bearing 
on our detergent division and retail sales porti on of 
pigments division.

4. The power cuts prevalent in Tamil Nadu have 
aff ected the manufacturing division resulti ng 
in increase in power cost and intermitt ent shut 
down which has hampered diffi  culty in conti nuous 
operati on of the process plant.  

PROSPECTS & OUTLOOK

In the case of ITES division, there has been an 
improvement in operati onal effi  ciency by bringing 
all the divisions under one roof. This has resulted in 
synergy of operati on and helped to post bett er revenue 
and profi tability. This will be more pronounced in the 
coming year.

The export market for pigments is showing signs 
of revival and our parti cipati on in overseas trade 
exhibiti ons during last year improved our overseas 
customer base, especially in China & South Korea. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
The statements made in the report describes the 
company’s objecti ves, projecti ons, esti mates, 
expectati ons and predicti ons which may be “forward 
looking statements” within the meaning of the 
applicable securiti es laws and regulati ons. The annual 
results can diff er materially from those expressed 
or implied, depending on the economic conditi ons, 
Government Policies and other incidental factors and 
developments.

DIRECTORS
Mr. S. Sridhar, Director of the Company, reti re by 
rotati on at the ensuing Annual General Meeti ng and 
being eligible off er himself for re-appointment.  

Following Directors of the Company, who are 
independent within the meaning of clause 49 of the 
listi ng agreement have been proposed to be appointed 
as Independent Directors under the Provision of Secti on 
149, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under 
read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 at 
the ensuing Annual General Meeti ng (AGM).

 (i) Dr. Gopakumar G. Nair 
 (ii) Mr. Vinod G. Nehemiah
 (iii) Mr. Nimish U. Patel 
 (iv) Mr. T.R Madhavan

The above Directors qualify to be appointed as 
Independent Directors of the Company. The Directors if, 
appointed will hold offi  ce for fi ve consecuti ve years for 
a term up to Annual General Meeti ng for the year 2019. 
A detailed statement with respect to qualifi cati on and 
experti se of these Directors given in the Explanatory 
Statement to the Noti ce of Annual General Meeti ng.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec. 217 (2AA) of the 
Companies Act, 1956, the Directors confi rm that.

i) in the preparati on of the annual accounts for 
the year ended March 31, 2014 the applicable 
accounti ng standards have been followed along 
with proper explanati on relati ng to material 
departures.

ii) appropriate accounti ng policies have been selected 
and applied and such judgment and esti mates have 
been made that  are reasonable and prudent so as 
to give  true and fair view of the state of aff airs of  
the company as at March 31, 2014  and of the profi t 
of the company for the year ended that date.

iii) proper and suffi  cient care has been taken for the 
maintenance of adequate  accounti ng records 
in accordance with the provisions of this Act 
for safeguarding the assets of the company and 
for preventi ng and detecti ng fraud and other 
irregulariti es, and 

iv) the annual accounts have been prepared on a 
“going concern“ basis.



15

53rd Annual Report 2013-14 Ultramarine & Pigments Ltd

FINANCE:
All taxes and statutory dues are being paid on ti me.  The 
Company has been regular in making ti mely repayment 
of the loans and interest to Banks. 

The surpluses in business are deployed in a prudent 
manner, considering the risk, reward and safety.

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO LISTING AGREEMENT

The Company’s shares are listed with Bombay Stock 
Exchange Ltd. Your Company has paid the respecti ve 
annual listi ng fees up-to-date and there are no arrears.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on Corporate Governance is annexed herewith. 
Auditor’s Certi fi cate on the same is also annexed.  

AUDITORS
M/s. CNK & Associates LLP (formerly M/s. Contractor, 
Nayak and Kishnadwala, Chartered Accountants) the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company hold offi  ce unti l the 
conclusion of the ensuing AGM.

In terms of the provision of Secti on 139 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rule, 2014, The Audit Committ ee and Board 
has recommended the re-appointment of M/s. CNK & 
Associates LLP for the fi nancial year 2014 -15 (from the 
conclusion of ensuing Annual General Meeti ng unti l the 
conclusion of Annual General Meeti ng for the year 2015) 
as Joint Auditors and appointment of M/s. Brahmmaya 
& Co., Chartered Accountants, Chennai for a period of 
5 years from the conclusion of ensuing Annual General 
Meeti ng subject to the approval of the shareholders at 
the ensuing Annual General Meeti ng.

COST AUDIT

The company is covered under the audit of cost 
accounti ng records relati ng to the products of the 
company. Mr. G. Sundaresan, Cost Accountant has been 
appointed as Cost auditor for the fi nancial year 2013-14.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The details of the remunerati on of the Managing 
Director/ Whole-ti me Executi ve Director is furnished in 
the corporate governance report. 

There has been no employees drawing remunerati on in 
excess of the limits prescribed under secti on 217 (2A) of 
the Companies Act, 1956.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO 

The parti culars required to be included in terms of secti on 
217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956 with regard to 
Conservati on of Energy, Technology absorpti on, Foreign 
Exchange earnings and outgo are given in Annexure.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board acknowledges the support given by the 
employees for their collecti ve contributi on, Bankers and 
the shareholders for their conti nued support.

By Order of the Board
for ULTRAMARINE & PIGMENTS LTD.,

R. SAMPATH
Chairman & Managing Director

Chennai 
27th May, 2014
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ANNEXURE “I” TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT
Parti culars of Employees pursuant to Secti on 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies 
(Parti culars of Employees) Rules 1975 as amended by the Companies Amendment Act, 1988 and forming part of 
the Directors Report for the year ended 31st March, 2014.

Sl. 
No.

Name of Employee Age in 
Years

Qualifi cati on 
and 

Experience

Designati on Remunerati on
(Rs.)

Date of 
Commence-

ment

Last  
Employment 

held

1  Mr. R. Sampath 69 B.Sc. B.S.    
(Chem. Engg.) 
U.S.A. 44 yrs

Chairman and 
Managing 
Director

8,248,804 01.03.1970 Engineer, 
Hercules Inc. 

USA

2  Mr. S. Sridhar 63 B.Sc., A.C.A.        
39 yrs

Joint 
Managing 
Director

8,248,804  01.08.2012 Thirumalai 
Chemicals Ltd.

3  Ms. Indira  Sundararajan 66 B.Sc.(Chem)
B. Tech 

(Pharma) 
41 yrs

Whole-ti me 
Executi ve 
Director

8,248,804 01.07.2003 Thirumalai 
Chemicals Ltd.

NOTES:

1) Remunerati on includes Company’s contributi on to Provident Fund, Superannuati on Fund, Medical Benefi ts, 
Leave Travel Allowance and commission payable etc.

2) Nature of employment is contractual.

3) Mr. R. Sampath, is a relati ve of Mrs. Indira Sundararajan, Whole-ti me Executi ve Director of the Company.

By Order of the Board
for ULTRAMARINE & PIGMENTS LTD.,

R. SAMPATH
Chairman & Managing Director

Chennai 
27th May, 2014
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ANNEXURE II TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Informati on as per Secti on 217 (1) (e) read with the Companies (Disclosures of parti culars in report of the Board 
of Directors) Rules, 1988 and forming part of the Director’s Report.

I. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

 (a) Energy saving systems are incorporated wherever necessary / Energy savings are att empted conti nuously.

 (b) Existi ng energy saving systems are properly uti lised and further devices are added whenever necessary.

FUEL CONSUMPTION (POWER & FUEL)

1. ELECTRICITY UNITS YEAR ENDING 
31.03.2014

YEAR ENDING 
31.03.2013

a)  Purchased Units KW /HR  38,93,684 21,77,237

Total Cost  Rs. 3,66,13,594 1,85,66,234

Rate/ Unit Rs. 9.40 8.53

b)  Own Generati on    

Through DG KW/HR 1,92,545 21,50,023

Unit / Litre of Diesel Oil KW/HR 3.10 3.22

Cost Per Unit Rs. 17.10 13.94

2.  COAL AND COKE    

Coal & Coke & Pet Coke Rs. 3,71,76,057 2,96,04,146

Coal & Coke & Pet Coke Tons 2,114 1,629

Rate / Ton Rs. 17,582 18,177

3.  FURNACE OIL/ DIESEL / SKO ETC  

Furnace Oil / Diesel / SKO  Etc. KL 1,063 1,815

Total amount Rs. 4,99,07,372 7,88,73,625

Rate / KL Rs. 46,933 43,459

4.  RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE 
     ON R&D    

i)    Capital Rs. 2,03,346 1,67,253

ii)   Recurring Rs. 63,48,583 9,47,872

iii)  Total Rs. 65,51,929 11,15,125

iv)  Total R&D Expenditure as a percentage of total turnover 0.44% 0.08%
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II. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION, INNOVATION

  Your Company is taking initi ati ves for quality of all products and services by absorbing new technologies in 
product/ process developments through modernizati on and also by cost-eff ecti ve methods / processes.

III.    FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

  Your Company is constantly exploring new markets to enhance the exports of its Products despite the sti ff  
competi ti on faced in the internati onal market, vigorous eff orts are being made to enhance our revenue from 
IT-Enabled Services Division. Earnings in Foreign Exchange from Exports and Services are given in Notes on 
fi nancial statements.

By Order of the Board
for ULTRAMARINE & PIGMENTS LTD.,

R. SAMPATH
Chairman & Managing Director

Chennai 
27th May, 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 2013-14
(as required under Clause 49 of the Listi ng Agreement with Stock Exchanges)

Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance

The Company believes that the pursuit for good Corporate Governance is an ongoing process which facilitates the 
company to achieve its avowed objecti ves of transparency, accountability and responsibility in all our dealings with 
our shareholders, customers, employees and the community at large. This objecti ve extends not merely to meet 
with statutory requirements but also to go beyond them by putti  ng into place procedures and systems which are in 
accordance with the best practi ces for Corporate Governance.

The Company recognizes that strong Corporate Governance is a key driver of sustainable corporate growth and long 
term value creati on.

In this report the company confi rms its compliance with the Corporate Governance code as required by Clause 49 
of the listi ng agreement with the Stock Exchanges.

(a) Compositi on:

 1.  The Board of Directors of your Company comprise of an Executi ve Chairman & Managing Director, a Joint 
Managing Director, a Whole-ti me Director with fi ve Non-Executi ve Directors.

 2. All Non-Executi ve Directors except Mr. S. Santhanam are Independent Directors.

(b) Board Committ ees:

 i. Audit cum Remunerati on Committ ee:

  Dr. G.G. Nair (Chairman)

  Mr. Nimish U. Patel (Member)

  Mr. T.R. Madhavan (Member)

   During the year, the Committ ee met four ti mes on 24/05/2013, 09/08/2013, 14/11/2013 and 07/02/2014. 
All the members of the Committ ee as well as the concerned partner of the Statutory Auditor remained 
present at all the meeti ngs except Dr. G.G. Nair, Chairman of the Committ ee who was absent in one meeti ng 
dated 07.02.2014.

   The audited results for the year ended 31/03/2014 were reviewed by the Committ ee before being placed 
before the Board. 

   The committ ee Member’s also review the Statement of outstanding Debts, parti cularly overdue, as well 
as Group Company transacti ons. Appointment and payment of remunerati on to the Directors and key 
management personnel are also referred to/reviewed by the Committ ee. 

 ii. Share Transfer / Investors’ Grievance Committ ee

  The Share Transfer / Investors’ Grievance Committ ee consti tutes of the following members:

  Dr. G.G. Nair (Chairman)

  Mr. S. Sridhar (Member)

  Mr. T.R. Madhavan (Member)

   Mr. Kishore Kumar Sahoo, Company Secretary is the Compliance Offi  cer. All complaints whenever received 
from any investor were ti mely att ended for redressal. Total of 8 Complaints were received from the 
Shareholders during 2013-14, which were all att ended to and resolved and there were no complaints 
pending at the end of the year. The process of share transfer is delegated and is done once a fortnight 
(depending on transfers received) which is confi rmed and rati fi ed in the next meeti ng. The Committ ee 
meets as oft en as is necessary.
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   There has been no complaint from any investor which has not been redressed promptly. Four meeti ngs of 
the Share Transfer- Investors Grievance committ ee were held during the year 2013-14. 

  Shareholding in dematerialized mode as on 31st March, 2014 is 95.33%

 (c) Board Meeti ngs:

  Number of Board Meeti ngs held during the year 2013- 14 

  Six Meeti ngs of the Board of Directors were held on the following dates:

  17/04/2013  24/05/2013  08/07/2013  09/08/2013  14/11/2013  07/02/2014

   The Company Secretary in consultati on with Chairman and Managing Director draft s the agenda of the 
meeti ng. Agenda papers along with relevant details are circulated to all Directors well in advance of the 
date of the Board meeti ng.  

 (d) Directors att endance record and directorships held:  

Name of the Director

Att endance at No. of Directorships 
of other 

Public Companies

No. of Memberships 
of Board 

Sub-committ ees
Board 

Meeti ngs
 Last 
AGM

Mr. R. Sampath*  6 Yes  1 1
Mr.  S. Sridhar** 6 Yes 1$ -
Ms. Indira Sundararajan*** 6 Yes 1 -
Mr.  S. Santhanam 6 Yes 1 2
Dr. G.G.Nair 5 Yes 2 2
Mr. M.C. Choksi **** 3 No 2 1
Mr. Nimish Patel  5 No 3 1
Mr. T.R Madhavan 6 Yes 1 -
Mr. Vinod G. Nehemiah 6 Yes - -

(*) Chairman and Managing Director
(**) Joint Managing Director
(***) Wholeti me Director
(****)  Mr. M.C Choksi resigned from Directorship with eff ect from 10.08.2013.
($) Mr. S. Sridhar resigned from the Directorship  of Thirumalai Chemicals Ltd. with eff ect from 13.05.2014

 (e) Remunerati on of Directors

   Remunerati on paid or payable to Managing Director/ Whole-ti me Director /Director during the year ended 
31-03-2014.

(Amount in Rupees)

Name Salary PF Others Commission Total
1. Mr. R.Sampath – CMD 48,00,000 48,000 3,21,966 30,78,838 82,48,804
2. Mr. S. Sridhar – JOINT MD 57,00,000 --- 37,098 25,11,706 82,48,804
3. Ms. Indira Sundarajanan-WTED 52,25,000 57,000 5,95,784 23,71,020 82,48,804
4. Mr. S. Santhanam – Director --- --- --- 24,74,641 24,74,641

Notes: Managerial remunerati on is within the ceiling as per the resoluti on approved by the shareholders.   
The capti on “others” on the above table includes LTA, Medical and Superannuati on.
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   Sitti  ng fee is payable to the Non-Executi ve Directors for att ending the Board / Committ ee meeti ngs.  The 
sitti  ng fees paid to the non-executi ve Directors  is as under:

Name Amount (Rs.)

Mr. S. Santhanam 1,20,000/-

Dr. G.G. Nair 1,80,000/-

Mr. M.C. Choksi 60,000/-

Mr. Nimish  Patel 1,60,000/-

Mr. T.R. Madhavan 2,20,000/-

Mr. Vinod G. Nehemiah 1,20,000/-

   Payments are made to the Non-Executi ve Directors depending on the number of meeti ngs att ended by 
them. These payments are reviewed by the Board of Directors from ti me to ti me.

 (f) Share holdings of Directors

  Details of Shares held by Non-Executi ve Directors as on 31.03.2014

Name No. of Shares held

Mr. S. Santhanam 17,41,611

Dr. G.G. Nair 18,000

Mr. Nimish  Patel 52,589

Mr. T.R. Madhavan 600

Mr. Vinod G. Nehemiah 1,77,600

 (g) Brief details of General Body Meeti ngs:

   The  Fift ythird Annual  General  Meeti ng of the Company  for  the fi nancial year 2013-14 will be held on 
Thursday the 7th Day of August, 2014 at 3.30 p.m.at THE MYSORE ASSOCIATION AUDITORIUM, Mysore 
Associati on, 393 Bhaudaji Road, Matunga- C. Rly. Mumbai – 400 019. 

  The last three Annual General Meeti ngs were held as under:

Financial Year Date Time Locati on

2012 – 13 08.07.2013 3.30 p.m. Mysore Associati on Auditorium, Bhaudaji Road, 
Matunga, Mumbai – 400 019.

2011 – 12 13-08-2012 4.00 p.m. Mysore Associati on Auditorium, Bhaudaji Road, 
Matunga, Mumbai – 400 019

2010 – 11 08-08-2011 4.00 p.m. Mysore Associati on Auditorium, Bhaudaji Road, 
Matunga, Mumbai – 400 019

 (h) Code of Conduct

   The Company has laid down the Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management of the 
Company. The Code is also posted on the Company’s website.

   All Board members and Senior Management of the Company have affi  rmed compliance with their Code 
of Conduct for the fi nancial year ended March 31, 2014. The Chairman & Managing Director has also 
confi rmed and certi fi ed the same. The certi fi cati on is annexed at the end of this Report.
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Disclosures:

(i) Internal  Audit  Functi ons and  Statutory  Compliance:

  Internal Audit functi ons of the company have been carried out by a fi rm of Chartered Accountants. The 
Reports of the Internal Auditors on the operati ons and fi nancial transacti ons and the acti on taken thereon 
by the management in the form of report are duly submitt ed to the Audit cum Remunerati on Committ ee 
of the Board of Directors.  The Statutory Auditors are provided with the reports of the internal auditors for 
considerati on and report as also the acti on taken report made by the Company. 

 The Internal auditor also makes presentati on to the Audit Committ ee whenever required.

  For every quarter, the Company Secretary/Department Head makes report of Statutory compliances which 
are placed before the Audit Committ ee and the Board Meeti ng. 

(ii)  Directors with materially signifi cant related party transacti ons, pecuniary or business relati onship with the 
company:

  There were no material signifi cant transacti ons with the Directors or the management or their subsidiaries or 
relati ves that have any potenti al confl ict with the interest of the Company.   

(iii) Details of Non-compliance:

  There were no case of non-compliance by the company nor any cases of penalti es, strictures imposed on the 
company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matt er related to capital markets during 
the last three years.     

(iv) Risk Management

  The Company has well laid down procedures to inform Board members about the risk assessment and 
minimizati on procedures.

(v) CEO / CFO Certi fi cati on

  Appropriate certi fi cati on as required under Para V of Clause 49 of the Listi ng requirements have been made to 
the Board of Directors by the CEO/CFO which has been taken note of by the Board.

(vi) Means of communicati on:

  The company has promptly reported all material informati on including quarterly results and press releases to 
the Stock Exchanges where the company’s securiti es are listed.  The quarterly results were communicated to 
the shareholders by  way of adverti sement in a Nati onal Daily and in a vernacular language newspaper.

(vii)  Disclosures by Management to the Board:

  All details relati ng to fi nancial and commercial transacti ons where Directors may have a potenti al interest are 
provided to the Board, and the interested Directors neither parti cipate in the discussion, nor do they vote on 
such matt ers.

(viii) Management’s Discussion and Analysis:

 This annual report has a detailed chapter on management’s discussion and analysis.



23

53rd Annual Report 2013-14 Ultramarine & Pigments Ltd

(ix) General Shareholders Informati on:

 1) Date, ti me and venue of 53rd  AGM :  Thursday, the 7th August 2014 at 3.30 P.M
Mysore Associati on Auditorium,
393, Bhaudaji Road, Matunga,
Mumbai – 400 019.

 2) Date of Book Closure : 29th July, 2014 to 7th August 2014 
      (both days Inclusive)

 3) Listi ng on Stock Exchanges : Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. 

 4) Listi ng Fees : Paid as per the listi ng agreement

 5) ISIN No.  : INE 405 A0 1021

 6) BSE Stock Code : 506685

 7) Registered Offi  ce :  Thirumalai House, 
Road No.29, Sion-East, Mumbai- 400 022.
Phone: +91-22-43686200, 6256
Fax    : +91-22-24011699
E. Mail : cs@uplamb.net

 8) Registrars and Share Transfer Agent : Link  Inti me India Private Limited
      C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound
      LBS Road, Bhandup (W), Mumbai – 400 078.
      Phone: +91-22 25946970
      Fax    : +91-22 25946969
      E.Mail : rnt.helpdesk@linkinti me.co.in

 9) Compliance Offi  cer :   Mr. Kishore Kumar Sahoo – Company Secretary
      Ultramarine & Pigments Ltd.,
      Thirumalai House, Road No.29,
      Sion (East), Mumbai – 400 022.
      Phone:+91-22-43686200 / 6256
      Fax    : +91-22-2401 1699
      E.Mail : cs@uplamb.net

 10) Share Transfer System    :  The Company’s shares are traded in the Stock Exchanges 
compulsorily in de-materialized mode. Shares sent for 
physical transfer or de-materialisati on requests are 
registered promptly within 15 days  from the date of 
receipt of completed and validly executed documents.

 11) Financial Calendar  : Annual Results  : 27th May,  2014

      Mailing of Annual Reports : 3rd week of June, 2014

      Results for the Quarter ending

      June 30, 2014 : By 14th August, 2014

      September 30, 2014 : By 15th Nov, 2014

      December 31, 2014 : By 14th Feb,2015

      March 31, 2015 : By 30th May, 2015

 12) Dividend Payment dates : By 14th August , 2014
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 13) Dematerialisati on of Shares :  As on 31-03-2014, 95.33% of Company’s shares 
representi ng 2,78,37,324 shares were held in the 
de-materialized form.

      Shares with NSDL – 2,53,98,015

      Shares with CDSL -     24,39,309

 14) Plant locati on :   Ambatt ur 
No. 556, Vanagaram Road,
 Ambatt ur, Chennai – 600 053, Tamilnadu.
Tel: +91-44-6692 1195 / 96/97
Fax: +91-44-6692 1100
E-mail: cs@uplamb.net

       Ranipet
25-B, SIPCOT Industrial Complex, 
Ranipet – 632 403, Tamil Nadu.
Tel: +91-4172-664401 / 402/403/404/405
Fax: +91-4172-664400 
E-mail: syndet@ultramarinepigments.net

       Lapiz Online
RR Tower – IV , Super A - 16 &17,
T V K  Industrial Estate, Guindy
Chennai – 600032
Tel: +91-44-42901300
Fax: +91-44- 42901310
E-mail : info@lapizonline.com

 15) Categories of Shareholders  No. of Shares % of Shareholders
  (as on 31.03.2014)

   Promoters/  Directors, their
Relati ves,  Group Companies : 1,47,78,654 50.61

  Financial Insti tuti ons / Banks : 82,745 0.28  

  NRI   : 4,50,917 1.55

  Companies / Bodies Corporate : 4,23,345 1.45 

  General Public : 1,34,25,979 45.98

  Clearing Member & Trusts : 38,360 0.13

      2,92,00,000 100.00
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 16) Distributi on of Shareholding as on 31.03.2014

No. of 
Shares

No. of 
Shareholders

% of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares
% of 

Shareholding
Up to 500 3629 59.09 708830 2.43

 501-  1000 944 15.37 778951 2.67
1001-2000 528 8.60 840445 2.88
2001-3000 246 4.01 619174 2.12
3001-4000 168 2.74 588639 2.01
4001-5000 140 2.28 660240 2.26

5001-10000 245 3.99 1934945 6.63
Over 10000 241 3.92 23068776 79.00

TOTAL 6141 100.00 29200000 100.00

 17) Stock Market price data for the year 2013 – 14

 Bombay Stock Exchange  Ltd 
Month High Low No. of Shares

April -2013 64.70 57.25 2,53,458
May-2013 60.85 49.50 1,17,296
June-2013 54.50 47.10 84,811
July-2013 54.00 42.50 42,269
August-2013 47.00 40.15 19,151
September-2013 45.00 39.50 77,973
October-2013 40.75 38.10 68,071
November-2013 43.90 38.65 1,68,852
December-2013 45.85 39.00 56,323
January-2014 49.50 40.00 86,013
February-2014 57.00 40.00 6,68,390
March-2014 56.45 47.30 3,22,624

 18) Corporate Ethics.

   The consistent endeavor of Ultramarine & Pigments Ltd. is to enhance the reputati on of the Company 
and irrespecti ve of the goals to be achieved, the means are as important as the end. The Company has 
adopted “The Code of Conduct for preventi on of Insider Trading”, which contains policies prohibiti ng 
Insider Trading. The Company has also promulgated the Code of Conduct to be followed by Directors and 
Management which is also available on the Company’s website.

Declarati on by the CEO under Clause 49 1 (D) of the Listi ng Agreement regarding adherence to the Code of 
Conduct.

In accordance with Clause 49 sub-clause 1 (D) of the Listi ng Agreement with the Stock Exchange, I hereby confi rm 
that, all the Directors and the Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affi  rmed compliance to the Code 
of Conduct for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2014.

for ULTRAMARINE & PIGMENTS LTD.,

R. SAMPATH
Chairman & Managing Director

Chennai 
27th May, 2014
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Independent Auditors’ Certi fi cate on Corporate Governance

To the Members of
Ultramarine & Pigments Limited.

We have examined the compliance of conditi ons of corporate governance by Ultramarine & Pigments Limited for 
the year ended on 31st March 2014 as sti pulated in clause 49 of the Listi ng Agreement of the said Company with 
stock exchanges.

The compliance of conditi ons of corporate governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examinati on 
was limited to procedures and implementati ons thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance 
of the conditi ons of the corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the fi nancial 
statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our informati on and according to the explanati ons given to us, we certi fy that the 
Company has complied with the conditi ons of corporate governance as sti pulated in the above menti oned Listi ng 
Agreement.

As required by the Guidance Note issued by the Insti tute of Chartered Accountants of India, we have to state that no 
investor grievance is pending for a period exceeding one month against the Company as per the records maintained 
by the Shareholders and Investors’ Grievance Committ ee.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
effi  ciency or eff ecti veness with which the Management has conducted the aff airs of the Company.

For and on behalf of
CNK & Associates LLP,

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registrati on No.: 101961W

H. V. Kishnadwala
Partner 

Membership No.: 037391

Chennai 
27th May, 2014
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of 
Ultramarine & Pigments Limited 

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying fi nancial statements of Ultramarine & Pigments Limited (‘the Company’), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2014, and the Statement of Profi t and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for 
the year then ended, and a summary of signifi cant accounti ng policies and other explanatory informati on.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparati on of these fi nancial statements that give a true and fair view of 
the fi nancial positi on, fi nancial performance and cash fl ows of the Company in accordance with the Accounti ng 
Standards referred to in sub-secti on (3C) of secti on 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (‘the Act’) [which conti nue to 
be applicable in respect of secti on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 in terms of General Circular 15/2013 dated 13 
September 2013, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Aff airs]. This responsibility includes the design, implementati on 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparati on and presentati on of the fi nancial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fi nancial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditi ng issued by the Insti tute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the fi nancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An  audit  involves   performing  procedures  to  obtain   audit  evidence  about  the  amounts  and   disclosures  in  
the  fi nancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the fi nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparati on and fair presentati on 
of the fi nancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the eff ecti veness of the enti ty’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluati ng the appropriateness of accounti ng policies used and the reasonableness of the accounti ng esti mates 
made by management, as well as evaluati ng the overall presentati on of the fi nancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi  cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our informati on and according to the explanati ons given to us, the fi nancial 
statements give the informati on required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounti ng principles generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of  the Balance Sheet, of the state of aff airs of the Company as at March 31, 2014;

(b) in the case of the Statement of Profi t and Loss, of the profi t for the year ended on that date; and

(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash fl ows for the year ended on that date.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of sub-secti on (4A) of secti on 227 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matt ers 
specifi ed in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

2. As required by secti on 227 (3) of the Act, we report that:

 a) We have obtained all the informati on and explanati ons which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

 b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears 
from our examinati on of those books; 

 c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of  Profi t and  Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account;

 d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profi t and Loss and Cash Flow Statement comply with the 
Accounti ng Standards referred to in sub-secti on (3C) of secti on 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 [which 
conti nue to be applicable in respect of secti on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 in terms of General Circular 
15/2013 dated 13 September 2013, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Aff airs];

 e) On the basis of writt en representati ons received from the directors as on March 31, 2014, and taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualifi ed as on March 31, 2014, from being 
appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-secti on (1) of secti on 274 of the Companies Act, 1956.

For and on behalf of
CNK & Associates LLP,

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registrati on No.: 101961W

H. V. Kishnadwala
Partner 

Membership No.: 037391

Chennai 
27th May, 2014
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Annexure to Independent Auditor’s Report
Referred in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report 
of even date. 

On the basis of such checks as considered appropriate and in terms of the informati on and explanati ons given to us, 
we state as under: 

1 (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full parti culars, including quanti tati ve details and 
situati on of the fi xed assets; 

1 (b) As explained to us, the management carries out the physical verifi cati on of the fi xed assets at reasonable 
intervals. The discrepancies noti ced on such verifi cati on, which were not material, have been appropriately 
dealt with in the fi nancial statements;  

1 (c) The fi xed assets disposed off  by the Company during the year were not substanti al and therefore does not 
aff ect the going concern assumpti on;

2 (a) As explained to us inventories have been physically verifi ed during the year by the management. In our 
opinion, having regard to the nature and locati on of stocks, the frequency of the physical verifi cati on is 
reasonable;

2 (b) In our opinion and as explained to us, the procedures of physical verifi cati on of inventory followed by the 
management are reasonable and adequate in relati on to the size of the Company and the nature of its 
business;

2 (c) In our opinion and according to the informati on and explanati on given to us, the Company is maintaining 
proper records of inventory and the discrepancies noti ced on physical verifi cati on between physicals stocks 
and the book records were not material in relati on to the operati ons of the Company and the same have 
been properly dealt with in the books of account;

3 (a) As per the informati on and explanati ons given to us, the Company has not granted nor accepted any loan, 
secured or unsecured, from companies, fi rms or other parti es covered in the register maintained under 
secti on 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(b) to 3(g) of the paragraph 4 
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

4 In our opinion and according to informati on and explanati on given to us, there is an adequate internal control 
system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to purchase of 
inventory and fi xed assets and for the sale of goods and services. Further, on the basis of our examinati on of 
the books of account, and as explained to us, no major weakness has been noti ced in internal control system in 
respect of these areas and we have not observed any conti nuing failure to correct major weakness in the same; 

5 (a) Based on the audit procedures applied by us and according to the informati on and explanati ons provided 
by the management, we are of the opinion that the transacti ons that need to be entered into the register 
maintained under Secti on 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 have been so entered;

5 (b) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the informati on and explanati on given to us, the 
transacti ons made in pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered in the Register maintained under 
secti on 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 and exceeding the value of Rs. 5,00,000 in respect of each party 
during the year have been made  at prices which are prima facie reasonable having regard to the prevailing 
market prices at the relevant ti me;

6 The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public accordingly, clause (vi) of paragraph 4 of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company;

7 In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size of the Company and the 
nature of its business;
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8 We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies 
(Cost Accounti ng Records) Rules, 2011 prescribed by the Central Government under secti on 209(1)(d) of the 
Companies Act, 1956 and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed accounts and cost records have 
been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examinati on of the cost records with a 
view to determining whether they are accurate or complete;

9 (a) According to the informati on and explanati ons given to us and the records examined by us, the Company 
is regular in depositi ng with appropriate authoriti es undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, 
Investor Educati on and Protecti on Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax / VAT, Wealth 
Tax, Service tax Custom duty, Excise-duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it and there 
are no undisputed statutory dues outstanding as at 31st March 2014, for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable;

9 (b) Disputed statutory dues that have not been deposited on account of disputed matt ers in respect of Income 
Tax pending before appropriate authoriti es are as under:

Name of the Statute Nature of the 
dues

Amount (Rs.) Years to which 
the amount 

relates

Forum where dispute is 
pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 51,434 Assessment 
Year 2006-07 

Commissioner of Income Tax, 
Appeals

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax *32,02,733 Assessment 
Year 2009-10

Commissioner of Income Tax, 
Appeals

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax *1,22,83,636 Assessment 
Year 2010-11

Commissioner of Income Tax, 
Appeals

Tamil Nadu Value 
Added Tax, 2006

Tamil Nadu VAT 10,15,810 Financial Year 
2012-13 

Appellate Deputy 
Commissioner of Commercial 
Taxes, Chennai

*Amounts paid under protest and not charged to profi t and loss statement have not been included above. 
[Refer Note No.  4.1(c)  of Notes forming part of Financial Statements]

10 The Company does not have any accumulated losses as on 31st March 2014 and has not incurred any cash 
losses during the fi nancial year and in the immediately preceding fi nancial year;

11 According to the books of account examined by us and as explained to us, the Company has not defaulted in 
repayment of any dues to fi nancial insti tuti ons or banks; 

12 Based on our examinati on of the records and as explained to us, the Company has not granted any loans and/
or advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securiti es;

13 In our opinion, and as per informati on and explanati on provided to us, the Company is not a chit fund / nidhi / 
mutual benefi t fund / society. Therefore,  the provisions of clause (xiii) of the paragraph 4 of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company;

14 During the year, the Company does not have any transacti ons in respect of dealing and trading in shares, 
securiti es, debentures and other investments. All shares, debentures and other securiti es held as investments 
by the Company have been held by the Company in its own name;

15 According to the informati on and explanati ons given to us, the Company has not given any guarantees for loans 
taken by others from banks or fi nancial insti tuti ons;
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16 According to the informati on and explanati ons given to us, term loans taken by the Company, has been applied 
for the purpose for which loans were obtained;

17 As explained to us and on an overall examinati on of the balance sheet of the Company, in our opinion, there are 
no funds raised on short-term basis which have been used for long-term investment by the Company;

18 During the year the Company has not made any preferenti al allotment of shares to the parti es or companies 
covered in the register maintained under secti on 301 of the Companies Act, 1956; 

19 During the year the Company has not issued any  debentures accordingly, the clause (xix) of the paragraph 4 of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company;

20 The Company has not raised any money by way of public issues during the year. Therefore, the provisions of 
clause (xx) of the paragraph 4 of the Order are not applicable to the Company;

21 As per the informati on and explanati ons given by the management to us, we report that no fraud on or by the 
Company has been noti ced or reported during the year.

For and on behalf of

CNK & Associates LLP,
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registrati on No.: 101961W

H. V. Kishnadwala
Partner 

Membership No.: 037391

Chennai 
27th May, 2014
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2014 (Amount in rupees)

          Parti culars Note As at As at  
     31.03.2014 31.03.2013

Equity and liabiliti es
Shareholders' Funds
 Share Capital 3.1 58,400,000 58,400,000 
 Reserves and Surplus 3.2 863,312,787 804,769,415 
     921,712,787 863,169,415 
Non-Current Liabiliti es
 Long-term borrowings 3.3 - 20,000,001 
 Deferred tax liability (net) 3.4 49,934,183 53,650,851 
 Long-term provisions 3.5 32,894,041 32,112,297 
     82,828,224 105,763,149 
Current Liabiliti es
 Short-term borrowings 3.6 -  3,114,668 
 Trade payables 3.7 74,828,025 36,728,572 
 Other Current liabiliti es 3.8 82,214,190 70,443,011 
 Short-term provisions 3.9 108,765,802 111,117,157 
     265,808,017 221,403,408 
Total    1,270,349,028 1,190,335,973 
Assets 
Non-current assets
 Fixed assets
  Tangible 3.10 405,737,871 401,611,425 
  Intangible 3.10 2,741,521 3,791,815 
  Capital work-in-progress  12,979,826 24,164,841 
 Non-current investments 3.11 132,170,372 132,170,372 
 Long term loans and advances 3.12 86,261,951 71,776,392 
     639,891,541 633,514,845 
Current assets
 Inventories 3.13 181,900,311 116,376,500 
 Trade receivables 3.14 219,259,691 238,688,968 
 Cash and bank balances 3.15 126,587,631 112,129,648 
 Short-term loans and advances 3.16 98,764,680 83,934,411 
 Other current assets 3.17 3,945,174 5,691,601 
     630,457,487 556,821,128 
Total    1,270,349,028 1,190,335,973 

Signifi cant accounti ng policies and notes to Financial Statements 2 to 6

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For & on behalf of
CNK & ASSOCIATES LLP  R. SAMPATH
Chartered Accountants  Chairman & Managing Director

H. V. KISHNADWALA KISHORE KUMAR SAHOO GOPAKUMAR G. NAIR
Partner Company Secretary Director

Chennai 
27th May, 2014



33

53rd Annual Report 2013-14 Ultramarine & Pigments Ltd

Statement of Profi t and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2014 (Amount in rupees)

          Parti culars Note Year ended  Year ended 
     31.03.2014 31.03.2013

Income 

Revenue from Operati ons 3.18 1,504,538,679 1,401,503,596 

Other Income 3.19 30,560,033 37,886,104 

Total Revenue  1,535,098,712 1,439,389,700 

Expenses

Cost of material consumed 3.20 626,878,907 612,916,151 

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade  172,639 29,043 

Changes in inventories of fi nished goods and work-in-progress 3.21 (23,130,142) (24,690,508)

Employees benefi t expense 3.22 278,620,377 252,808,332 

Finance costs 3.23 9,568,061 15,630,827 

Depreciati on and amorti zati on expenses 3.10 56,118,174 57,631,473 

Other expenses 3.24 370,991,642 351,402,075 

Total expenses  1,319,219,658 1,265,727,393 

Profi t before tax  215,879,054 173,662,307 

Tax Expenses

 Current tax expense  (75,500,000) (58,800,000)

 Deferred tax (expense) / credit  3,716,668 1,575,276 

 Tax adjustments for earlier years - (expense)/credit  (146,000) 4,799,887 

Profi t for the year  143,949,722 121,237,470 

Earnings per equity share Basic and Diluted - Par value Rs. 2/- per Share 5.5 4.93 4.15

Signifi cant accounti ng policies and notes to Financial Statements 2 to 6

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For & on behalf of
CNK & ASSOCIATES LLP  R. SAMPATH
Chartered Accountants  Chairman & Managing Director

H. V. KISHNADWALA KISHORE KUMAR SAHOO GOPAKUMAR G. NAIR
Partner Company Secretary Director

Chennai 
27th May, 2014
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2014 (Amount in rupees)
    31.03.2014 31.03.2013 
Cash fl ows from operati ng acti viti es
Net-profi t before taxati on, and extraordinary item 215,879,054 173,662,307 
Adjustments for: 
 Depreciati on and amorti sati on expenses 56,118,174 57,631,473 
 Interest income (6,063,521) (17,848,233)
 Dividend income (5,112,943) (10,225,885)
 Interest expenses 9,568,061 15,630,827 
 Eff ect of exchange rate change (114,377) 60,866 
 Loss / (Profi t) on sale / discarded asset (Net) 3,589,916 800,671 
Operati ng profi t before working capital change 273,864,364 219,712,026 
Adjustments for: 
Decrease / (Increase) in sundry debtors 19,324,045 (33,630,788)
Decrease / (Increase) in inventories (65,523,811) 42,648,382 
(Increase) / Decrease in Loans and advance (9,666,313) 20,151,900 
Increase in sundry creditors 39,979,996 (47,318,551)
Cash generated from operati ons 257,978,281 201,562,968 
Income-taxes paid (84,902,356) (62,040,440)
Net cash from operati ng acti viti es (A) 173,075,925 139,522,528 
Cash fl ows from investi ng acti viti es 
Purchase of fi xed assets (51,789,302) (35,518,545)
Sale of fi xed assets 190,075 162,261 
Proceeds from sale of investment -  -   
Interest received 6,063,521 13,954,896 
Dividends received 5,112,943 10,225,885 
(Increase) / Decrease in Bank / Inter corporate deposit (19,721,974) 24,486,055 
Net cash from investi ng acti viti es (B) (60,144,737) 13,310,552 
Cash fl ows from fi nancing acti viti es
(Re-payment of) / proceeds from long-term borrowings (20,000,001) (37,769,254)
Repayment of  short term borrowings (3,114,668) 3,114,668 
Interest paid  (9,568,061) (15,703,941)
Dividends paid (76,865,716) (101,810,910)
Net cash used in fi nancing acti viti es (C ) (109,548,446) (152,169,437)
Net increase / (decrease)  in cash and cash equivalents during the year (A+B+C) 3,382,742 663,643 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 44,569,255 43,905,612 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of year 47,951,997 44,569,255 
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 
 (i) Balances with banks 
  In deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months 7,600,000 -   
  In other accounts 39,640,328 44,035,739 
 (ii) Cash on hand 711,669 533,516 
    47,951,997 44,569,255 
Note:
1. Figures in the brackets represent cash outf lows.
2. Previous year fi gures have been regrouped wherever necessary to confi rm to the current year's classifi cati on.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For & on behalf of
CNK & ASSOCIATES LLP  R. SAMPATH
Chartered Accountants  Chairman & Managing Director

H. V. KISHNADWALA KISHORE KUMAR SAHOO GOPAKUMAR G. NAIR
Partner Company Secretary Director
Chennai 
27th May, 2014
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2014

A. CORPORATE INFORMATION

  Ultramarine & Pigments Limited(‘‘UPL” or “the Company”) is a public limited company domiciled in India 
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange 
in India. The Company is engaged in manufacturing and selling of pigments, surfactants, IT enabled services 
and Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) acti viti es. The Company caters to both domesti c and internati onal 
markets.

B. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 I a)  The fi nancial statements are prepared and presented in conformity with Generally Accepted 
Accounti ng principles (GAAP) in India, and comply in all material respects with the applicable 
Accounti ng Standards noti fi ed under the Companies Act, 1956 read with General Circular 15/2013 
dated 13 September 2013, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Aff airs, inrespect of Secti on 133 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The fi nancial 
statements have been prepared under the historical cost conventi on on the accrual basis.

  b)  All assets and liabiliti es have been classifi ed as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal 
operati ng cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956. Based 
on the nature of products and the ti me between the acquisiti on of assets for processing and their 
realisati on in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operati ng cycle as period 
of 12 months for the purpose of current – non-current classifi cati on of assets and liabiliti es.

II USE OF ESTIMATES:

  The preparati on of the fi nancial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make esti mates 
and assumpti ons that aff ect the reported amounts of assets and liabiliti es and disclosure of conti ngent 
liabiliti es on the date of the fi nancial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the 
year. Actual results could diff er from these esti mates. Esti mates and underlying assumpti ons are reviewed on 
an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounti ng esti mates is recognized prospecti vely in the current and future 
periods. 

III REVENUE RECOGNITION:

  Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefi ts will fl ow to the Company 
and the revenue can be reliably measured.

 Sale of goods:

  Revenue is recognized when the signifi cant risks and rewards of ownership of goods have passed to the 
buyer. Gross sales include amounts recovered towards Excise Duty and are net of returns.

 Income from services:

i) In case of IT Enabled Services, revenue from service contracts are recognized pro-rata, as and when the 
services are rendered over the period of the contract and are net of service tax;

ii) Income from BPO acti viti es is recognized on an accrual basis, based on the terms of the contract with 
customers.

iii) Income from Job work is accounted on dispatch of material and as per terms of agreement, which is 
generally on dispatch of material.
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 Income from wind operated generators:

  Revenue from sale of power from wind operated generators is accounted when the same is transmitt ed to and 
confi rmed by the Electricity Board to whom the same is sold.

 Dividend and interest income:

  Dividend income is recognized when the unconditi onal right to receive the income is established. Income from 
interest on deposits, loans and interest bearing securiti es is recognized on the ti me proporti onate method 
taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

 Export benefi ts:

  The benefi t accrued under the Duty Enti tlement Pass Book Scheme, duty drawback scheme as per the Export 
and Import Policy in respect of exports made under the said Schemes is accounted on an accrual basis and is 
included under the head “revenue from operati ons” as ‘Export Incenti ves’.

 Sale of scrap: 

 Revenue from sale of scrap is recognised as and when scrap is sold.

 Insurance Claims:

  Insurance claims are accounted when there is a reasonable certainty of the realisability of the claim amount 
or on the date of maturity of the Insurance Policy.

IV FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION:

 Tangible Assets:

  Fixed assets are carried at the cost of acquisiti on or constructi on less accumulated depreciati on and impairment 
losses if any. The cost of fi xed assets includes non-refundable taxes, duti es, freight and other incidental expenses 
related to the acquisiti on, installati on and bringing the asset to its working conditi on for its intended use. 

V  Depreciati on on fi xed assets is provided using the straight-line method at the rates specifi ed in Schedule XIV 
to the Companies Act, 1956 or based on the useful life of the assets as esti mated by Management, whichever 
is higher. In the case of Computers and Network Equipments acquired for the IT Enabled Services Division and 
BPO acti viti es, depreciati on is computed over the esti mated useful life of 4 years. In the case of Leasehold 
improvement, depreciati on is provided over lease period or useful life of the asset whichever is less. Leasehold 
rights are amorti sed on a straight line method over its lease period. Individual assets costi ng less than Rs.10,000 
are writt en off  fully in the year of purchase.

VI INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND AMORTISATION:

 (i) Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amorti sati on.

 (ii) Intangible assets are amorti sed on a straight-line basis as under:

  (a)  Soft ware costi ng up to Rs.25,000/- is expensed out in the year of acquisiti on. Other Soft ware 
acquired is amorti sed over its esti mated useful life of 3 years;

  (b) Intellectual Property is amorti sed over its esti mated useful life of 2 years.

VII IMPAIRMENT OF TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS:

  The Company assesses whether there is any indicati on that an asset may be impaired at each balance sheet date. 
If any such indicati on exists, the Company esti mates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable 
amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generati ng unit to which the asset belongs is 
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reducti on is 
treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profi t and loss. If at the balance sheet date 
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there is an indicati on that the previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is 
reassessed and the asset is refl ected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of amorti zed historical 
cost impaired earlier. 

VIII INVESTMENTS:

  Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classifi ed as current 
investments. All other investments are classifi ed as Non-current investments. Non-current investments are 
carried at cost less any other-than-temporary diminuti on in value, determined separately for each individual 
investment. The reducti on in the carrying amount is reversed when there is a rise in the value of the investment 
or if the reasons for the reducti on no longer exist.

  Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value. The comparison of cost and fair value is 
done separately in respect of each category of investment

IX INVENTORIES:

  Items of Inventory are valued on the principle laid down by Accounti ng Standard 2 on “Valuati on of 
Inventories”  on the basis given below:

(a)  Raw Materials, Stores 
& Spares and Fuel

Lower of cost (determined on weighted average basis) and net realizable value.

(b) Packing Material Lower of cost (determined on FIFO basis) and net realizable value.

(c) Work-in-Progress Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials, labour 
and a proporti on of manufacturing overheads based on normal operati ng 
capacity. 

(d) Finished Goods Lower of cost and net realizable value. 

Cost includes direct materials, labour, a proporti on of manufacturing overheads, 
based on normal operati ng capacity and excise duty.

(e) Materials and other items held for use in the producti on of inventories are not writt en down below 
cost if the fi nished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above 
cost.

X EMPLOYEE BENEFITS :

 Defi ned contributi on plan

  A defi ned contributi on plan is a post-employment benefi t plan under which an enti ty pays fi xed contributi ons 
into a separate enti ty and will have no legal or constructi ve obligati on to pay further amounts. Obligati ons 
for contributi ons to recognized provident funds and approved superannuati on schemes which are defi ned 
contributi on plans are recognized as an employee benefi t expense and charged to the statement of profi t and 
loss as and when the services are received from the employees.

 Defi ned benefi t plans

  A defi ned benefi t plan is a post-employment benefi t plan other than a defi ned contributi on plan. The Company’s 
net obligati on in respect of gratuity plan, which is a defi ned benefi t plan, and certain other defi ned benefi t 
plans is calculated separately for each plan by esti mati ng the amount of future benefi t that employees have 
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefi t is discounted to determine 
its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. 
The discount rate is the yield at the reporti ng date on risk free government bonds that have maturity dates 
approximati ng the terms of the Company’s obligati ons and that are denominated in the same currency in 
which the benefi ts are expected to be paid. The calculati on is performed annually by a qualifi ed actuary using 
the projected unit credit method.
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 Reti rement and other employee benefi ts:

  All employee benefi ts payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classifi ed as short 
term employee benefi ts. Benefi ts such as salaries, wages, performance incenti ve, paid annual leave, bonus, 
leave travel assistance, medical allowance, contributi on to provident fund and superannuati on etc. recognized 
as actual amounts due in period in which the employee renders the related services.

 (i)  Reti rement benefi ts in the form of Provident Fund is a defi ned contributi on scheme and the contributi ons 
are charged to the statement of profi t and loss for the year when the contributi on to the fund accrues. 
There are no obligati ons other than the contributi on payable to the recognized Provident Fund.

 (ii)  Reti rement benefi ts in the form of Superannuati on Fund is a defi ned contributi on scheme and the 
contributi on is charged to the statement of profi t and loss for the year when the contributi on accrues. 
There are no obligati ons other than the contributi on payable to the Superannuati on Fund Trust. The 
scheme is funded with Insurance Company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

 (iii)  Gratuity liability is a defi ned benefi t obligati on and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuati on 
on projected unit credit method made at the end of each fi nancial year. 

 (iv)  Accumulated leave, which is expected to be uti lized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term 
employee benefi t. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additi onal amount 
that it expects to pay as a result of the unused enti tlement that has accumulated at the reporti ng date. The 
Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term 
employee benefi t for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for 
based on the actuarial valuati on using the projected unit credit method at the year-end.

 (v) Actuarial gains/losses are recognized immediately to the statement of profi t and loss and are not deferred.

XI FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION:

 Initi al recogniti on:

   Foreign currency transacti ons are recorded using the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the respecti ve 
transacti ons. Exchange diff erences arising on foreign currency transacti ons sett led during the year are 
recognized in the statement of profi t and loss.

 Conversion:

  Monetary assets and liabiliti es denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated 
using the foreign exchange rates as at the balance sheet date. The resultant exchange diff erences are recognized 
in the statement of profi t and loss. Non-monetary assets and liabiliti es are not translated.

 Forward Exchange Contracts:

  The premium or discount arising at the incepti on of forward exchange contracts is amorti zed as expense or 
income over the life of the contract. Exchange diff erences on such contracts are recognized in the statement 
of profi t and loss in the year in which the exchange rates change. Any profi t or loss arising on cancellati on or 
renewal of forward exchange contract is recognized as income or as expense for the year.

XII BORROWING COSTS:

  Borrowing costs that are directly att ributable to the acquisiti on or constructi on of qualifying assets are capitalized 
for the period unti l the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes 
substanti al period of ti me to get ready for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense 
in the period in which they are incurred.
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XIII LEASE RENTALS:

  The lease arrangement is classifi ed as either a fi nance lease or an operati ng lease, at the incepti on of the lease, 
based on the substance of the lease arrangement.

 Finance leases

  A fi nance lease is recognized as an asset and a liability at the commencement of the lease, at the lower of the 
fair value of the asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Initi al direct costs, if any, are also 
capitalized and, subsequent to initi al recogniti on, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounti ng 
policy applicable to that asset. Minimum lease payments made under fi nance leases are apporti oned between 
the fi nance expense and the reducti on of the outstanding liability. The fi nance expense is allocated to each 
period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of 
the liability.

 Operati ng leases

  Other leases are operati ng leases, and the leased assets are not recognized on the Company’s balance sheet. 
Payments made under operati ng leases are recognized in statement of profi t and loss on accrual basis over the 
term of the lease.

XIV EARNINGS PER SHARE:

  Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profi t or loss for the period att ributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

  For the purpose of calculati ng diluted earnings per share, the net profi t or loss for the period att ributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted 
for the eff ects of all diluti ve potenti al equity shares. 

XV TAXATION:

 Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax charge or credit.

  Current Tax is determined as the amount of income tax payable to the taxati on authoriti es in respect of taxable 
income for the period.     

  Deferred tax charge or credit refl ects the tax eff ects of ti ming diff erences between accounti ng income and 
taxable income for the period. The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabiliti es 
or assets are recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or substanti ally enacted by the balance 
sheet date. 

  Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substanti vely enacted at the 
Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabiliti es are off set, if a legally enforceable right exists 
to set off  current tax assets against current tax liabiliti es and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabiliti es 
relate to the taxes on income levied by same governing taxati on laws.

  Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be 
realised in future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciati on or carry forward of losses, deferred tax 
assets are recognised only if there is a virtual certainty of realisati on of such assets.

  Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are writt en-down or writt en-up to refl ect the 
amount that is reasonably / virtually certain (as the case may be) to be realised.
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XVI PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS:

 Provisions:

  A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligati on as a result of past event; it is probable 
that an outf low of resources will be required to sett le the obligati on, in respect of which a reliable esti mate 
can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best esti mate 
required to sett le the obligati on at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and 
adjusted to refl ect the current best esti mates.

 Conti ngent Liability:

  A conti ngent liability is a possible obligati on that arises from past events whose existence will be confi rmed by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company 
or a present obligati on that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outf low of resources will be 
required to sett le the obligati on. A conti ngent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a 
liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a 
conti ngent liability but discloses its existence in the fi nancial statements.

 Conti ngent liabiliti es are disclosed for:

 (i)  possible obligati ons which will be confi rmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company, or

 (ii)  Present obligati ons arising from past events where it is not probable that an outf low of resources will be 
required to sett le the obligati on or a reliable esti mate of the amount of obligati on cannot be made.

  Conti ngent assets are not recognized in the fi nancial statements, since this may result in recogniti on of income 
that may never be realized.

XVII SEGMENT REPORTING:

  Segments are identi fi ed in line with AS-17 “Segment Reporti ng”, taking into considerati on the internal 
organisati on and management structure as well as the diff erenti al risk and returns of the segment.

 Identi fi cati on of Segment

  Based on the Company’s business model, Laundry and allied products, IT enabled services & BPO acti viti es 
and WindTurbine Generator  have been considered as the  reportable business segments. The analysis of 
geographical segments is based on the areas in which major operati ng divisions of the Company operate.

  The Company prepares its segment informati on in conformity with the accounti ng policies adopted for 
preparing and presenti ng the fi nancial statements of the Company as a whole.

 Inter segment transfers

 The Company accounts for inter segment revenues at cost plus basis.

 Unallocated items

  Unallocable income and expenses includes general corporate income and expense items which are not 
allocated to any business segment. 

XVIII CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

  The Company considers all highly liquid fi nancial instruments, which are readily converti ble into cash and have 
original maturiti es of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents.

  Cash and cash equivalents in the cash fl ow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term bank 
deposits with original maturity of three months or less.
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Notes forming part of fi nancial statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2014

Note 3.1 : Share Capital (Amount in rupees)

    As at  As at
    31.03.2014 31.03.2013

Authorised Shares

 50,000,000 (March 31, 2013: 50,000,000)  equity shares of Rs 2/- each 100,000,000 100,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares

 29,200,000 (March 31, 2013: 29,200,000)  Equity Shares of Rs 2/- each
 fully paid up. 58,400,000 58,400,000 

Terms/rights att ached to equity shares

(a) The Company has only one class of share referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs.2/-.  Each holder 
of equity shares is entti  led to one vote per share.

(b) The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of directors 
is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeti ng.

(c) In the event of liquidati on of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be enti tled to receive any of 
the remaining assets of the Company, aft er distributi on of all preferenti al amount. The distributi on will be 
proporti onate to the number of equity shares held by the share holders. 

(d) There is no change in issued and paid up share capital during the year.

(e) The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares

                   As at 31.03.2014      As at  31.03.2013

    No. of shares % held No. of shares % held

Thirumalai Chemicals Limited 3,044,800 10.43 3,044,800 10.43 

S. Santhanam  1,741,711 5.96 1,741,711 5.96 

R. Sampath  1,564,780 5.36 1,474,239 5.05 

S. Sridhar   1,503,569 5.15 1,503,569 5.15 
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Notes forming part of fi nancial statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2014
 (Amount in rupees)

    As at  As at
    31.03.2014 31.03.2013

Note 3.2 : Reserves and surplus
General reserve 

 Balance at the beginning of the year 395,500,000 382,500,000 

 Add: Transferred from surplus 15,000,000 13,000,000 

 Balance at the end of the year 410,500,000 395,500,000 

Surplus 

 Opening balance 409,269,414 377,897,660 

 Add: Profi t for the year 143,949,722 121,237,470 

    553,219,136 499,135,130 

 Less: Appropriati ons -  -   

 Proposed dividend [amount per share Rs.2.50/- (Previous year Rs.2.25/-)] (73,000,000) (65,700,000)

 Tax on proposed dividend (12,406,350) (11,165,715)

 Transfer to general reserve (15,000,000) (13,000,000)

 Closing balance 452,812,787 409,269,415 

Total    863,312,787 804,769,415 

Note 3.3 : Long term borrowings
Secured term loan from fi nancial insti tuti on 

       Export-Import Bank of India [Refer Note (a) and (b) below] -  20,000,001 

Total    - 20,000,001 

Notes:

(a)  An exclusive charge by way of hypothecati on over wind turbine generators and  second pari passu charge by 
way of hypothecati on of the Company's other movable fi xed assets and books debts.

(b)  Repayable in twelve quarterly equal instalments starti ng from 20th Mar 2012 of Rs. 66,66,667/- with interest 
@ 11.50%. (Refer Note 3.8 : current porti on of long-term borrowings) 

Note 3.4 : Deferred tax liabiliti es (net)
Deferred tax liability:

 On account of ti ming diff erence in
 Depreciati on and amorti sati on 66,307,183 74,522,441 

Sub-Total   66,307,183 74,522,441 

Deferred tax assets:

 Liabiliti es allowable on payment basis 16,373,000 20,799,531 

 Provision for doubtf ul receivables -  72,059 

Sub-Total   16,373,000 20,871,590 

Total    49,934,183 53,650,851 
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Notes forming part of fi nancial statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2014
 (Amount in rupees)

    As at  As at
    31.03.2014 31.03.2013

Note 3.5 : Long term provisions
Provision for employee benefi ts : (Non funded)
 Provision for gratuity (Refer note no.5.1 )      23,894,628 23,576,341 
 Provision for compensated absences 8,999,413 8,535,956 
Total    32,894,041 32,112,297 

Note 3.6 : Short term borrowings
Secured 
 Loan repayable on demand from banks - 3,114,668 
Total    -  3,114,668 
Note: 
Cash credit / export credit faciliti es is secured by hypothecati on of stock of raw materials, work in progress, fi nished 
goods,  packing materials, stores and spares and book debts of the Company and secured by a second  charge on 
the immovable properti es.

Note 3.7 : Trade payables
Trade Payables (refer note no.6.2 for details of dues to 
micro, small and medium enterprises) 74,828,024 36,728,572 
Total    74,828,024 36,728,572 

Note 3.8 :  Other current  liabiliti es
 Current maturiti es of long-term borrowings(Refer note 3.3) 20,000,001 37,769,257 
 Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 78,904 181,041 
 Unpaid  Dividend (Refer note below) 3,480,568 3,301,771 
 Deposit from customers 1,248,908 1,254,908 
 Others  57,405,810 27,936,034 
Total    82,214,191 70,443,011 

Note :
Unpaid dividend represents amounts to be credited to the Investor Educati on and Protecti on Fund as and when 
they become due. 

Note 3.9 : Short term provisions
For Employee benefi ts 
 Provision for gratuity (non-funded) 3,953,372 18,641,967 
 Provision for compensated absences  (non-funded) 7,596,667 7,124,670 
 Provision for bonus and ex-grati a 5,494,417 4,634,621 

For Others 
 Provision for excise duty 6,314,996 3,850,184 
 Proposed equity dividend 73,000,000 65,700,000 
 Provision for tax on proposed equity dividend 12,406,350 11,165,715 

Total    108,765,802 111,117,157 
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Notes forming part of fi nancial statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2014
 (Amount in rupees)
Note 3.10  : Fixed Assets

Descripti on Gross Block Accumulated Depreciati on Net Block

As at 
April 1, 2013

Additi ons Sales/ 
Adjustment

As at 
Mar 31, 

2014

As at 
April 1, 2013

Charge for 
the period

Sales/ 
Adjustment

As at 
Mar 31, 2014

As at 
Mar 31, 2014

As at 
Mar 31, 

2013

 Tangible (A)

Land - 
Freehold 

13,952,428 -   -   13,952,428 -   -   - - 13,952,428 13,952,428 

- Leasehold 
(see note 
below) 

49,219,046 -   - 49,219,046 952,894 497,162 -   1,450,056 47,768,990 48,266,152 

Buildings 69,288,927 16,742,705 -   86,031,632 38,818,005 2,248,572 -   41,066,577 44,965,055 30,470,923 

Plant & 
Machinery 

435,819,135 30,268,765 10,127,329 455,960,571 285,729,148 26,647,075 6,368,573 306,007,650 149,952,921 150,089,987 

Wind Turbine 
Generators 

232,414,032 -   -   232,414,032 98,372,407 19,984,129 -   118,356,536 114,057,496 134,041,625 

Kilns 57,671,307 -   - 57,671,307 54,791,644 - - 54,791,644 2,879,663 2,879,663 

Computer 
Equipments 

39,868,278 6,558,170 90,000 46,336,448 34,651,878 1,479,208 85,500 36,045,585 10,290,862 5,216,400 

Furniture 
Fixtures 

7,372,328 - - 7,372,328 4,206,015 309,309 - 4,515,323 28,57,005 3,166,313 

Leasehold 
Improvements 

11,013,987 6,088,051 8,173,106 89,28,932 8,026,437 1,609,593 8,173,106 1,462,924 74,66,008 2,987,550 

Offi  ce 
Equipments 

9,155,430 600,812 - 9,756,242 3,612,859 608,680 - 4,221,539 5,534,703 5,542,571 

Vehicles 7,138,544 1,516,021 - 8,654,565 2,140,731 698,207 - 2,838,937 5,815,628 4,997,813 

Details of 
Asset used for 
R& D 

Lab 
Equipment 

- 203,346 - 203,346 - 6,233 - 6,233 197,113 -

932,913,442 61,977,870 18,390,435 976,500,877 531,302,018 54,088,168 14,627,179 570,763,004 405,737,872 401,611,425 

Intangible (B)

Computer 
Soft ware 

17,266,860 996,446 136,250 18,127,056 13,475,046 2,030,006 119,516 15,385,536 2,741,520 3,791,815 

Intellectual 
Property 

1,900,000 - - 1,900,000 1,900,000 - - 1,900,000 - - 

19,166,860 996,446 136,250 20,027,056 15,375,046 2,030,006 119,516 17,285,536 2,741,521 3,791,815 

Total (A) + (B) 952,080,302 62,974,316 18,526,685 996,527,933 546,677,061 56,118,174 14,746,695 588,048,541 408,479,392 405,403,240 

Previous Year 929,428,704 31,106,544 8,454,945 952,080,302 496,537,602 57,631,473 7,492,014 546,677,061 405,403,240

Note: (1) Agreement for lease for 99 years with Gujarat Industrial Development Corporati on to be excecuted aft er compliance of sti pulated conditi ons.
 (2) Additi on to Building includes Rs. 500/- paid for 5 shares of Rs. 100/- each in Thirumalai House Offi  ce Unit Owners Condominium.
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 (Amount in rupees)

    As at  As at
    31.03.2014 31.03.2013

Note 3.11 : Non-current investments (At cost)
Non trade investment in equity shares

Quoted 
 2,045,177 (March 31, 2013 : 2,045,177) equity shares of   Rs 10/- each fully 132,153,971 132,153,971 
 paid up in Thirumalai Chemicals Limited.

Unquoted
350  (March 31, 2013 : 350) equity shares of US$ 1 each fully paid up in 
LAPIZ Inc., U.S.A. (Associate Company) 16,401 16,401 

Total    132,170,372 132,170,372 

Notes:
(a) Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments
 Cost   132,153,971 132,153,971 
 Market value 181,816,235 189,996,943 
(b) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 16,401 16,401 

Note 3.12 : Long-term loans and advances
Unsecured, considered good
 Other loans and advances
 Advance income taxes (net of provisions) 60,912,794 51,656,438 
 Loans and advances to employees 471,382 1,367,526 
 Deposits with related party (Refer note no. 5.3) 1,400,000 1,400,000 
 Security deposits 23,477,775 17,352,428 

Total    86,261,951 71,776,392 

Note 3.13 : Inventories (valued at lower of cost or net realizable value)
Raw materials and components 27,930,954 20,166,824 
Work in progress 36,637,800 21,393,800 
Finished goods  70,728,700 62,842,558 
Packing materials 5,325,022 6,035,465 
Fuel    3,417,226 3,531,003 
Stores and spares 3,066,390 2,406,850 
Raw materials in Transit 34,794,219 -   

Total    181,900,311 116,376,500 

Raw materials 
      Soda Ash  2,443,505 6,864,293 
      Acti ve Matt er 9,878,128 3,506,477 
      Sulphur  1,912,697 1,751,622 
     China Clay  5,186,474 3,072,768 
     Others   8,510,150 4,971,664 

Total    27,930,954 20,166,824 
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 (Amount in rupees)

    As at  As at
    31.03.2014 31.03.2013

Work in progress

    Pigments  36,637,800 21,393,800 

Total    36,637,800 21,393,800 

Finished goods 

 Pigments  49,536,800 40,465,100 

 Detergents 4,144,161 4,198,635 

 Sulphonati on 17,047,739 18,178,823 

Total    70,728,700 62,842,558 

Note 3.14 : Trade receivables

Debtors outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the due date 

 Secured, considered good (Refer note below) -  -   

 Unsecured, considered good 19,337,749 21,140,697 

    19,337,749 21,140,697 

Other debts 

 Unsecured, considered good 199,921,942 217,548,271 

Total    219,259,691 238,688,968 

Note 3.15 : Cash and Bank balances

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

 (i) Balances with banks 
  In current account 33,670,053 43,981,659 
  In EEFC accounts 5,970,275 54,080 
  In deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months 7,600,000 -   

 (ii) Cash on hand 711,669 533,516 

    47,951,997 44,569,255 

(b) Other Bank balances

 (i) Margin money with banks 62,550 58,622 

 (ii) Short-term bank deposits with original maturity of the period 
  between  three months and twelve months 75,092,516 64,200,000 

 (ii) Un-claimed dividend accounts (see Note below) 3,480,568 3,301,771 

Total    126,587,631 112,129,648 

Note 

These balances are not available for use by the Company as they represent corresponding un-paid dividend 
liabiliti es. 
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 (Amount in rupees)

    As at  As at
    31.03.2014 31.03.2013

Note 3.16 : Short-term loans and advances

 (Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

 Inter corporate deposits (including accrued interest)  65,166,310 56,519,578 

 Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received  5,334,820 5,340,739 

 Balance with central excise and sales tax authoriti es  22,438,948 16,746,638 

 Export incenti ves receivable  1,630,973 497,978 

 Advance to suppliers  2,847,643 4,181,918 

 Loans and advances to employees  1,345,986 647,560 

    (A) 98,764,680 83,934,411 

 Advance to supplier (considered doubtf ul)  -  212,000 

 Less provision for doubtf ul debts  - (212,000)

    (B) -  -   

Total    (A)+(B) 98,764,680 83,934,411 

Note 3.17 : Other current assets

 Interest/Income accrued but not due  3,462,212 3,893,337 

 Unbilled revenue  482,962 1,728,764 

 Others   -  69,500 

Total     3,945,174 5,691,601 
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 (Amount in rupees)

    Year ended  Year ended 
    31.03.2014 31.03.2013

Note 3.18 : Revenue from operati ons
Sale of products
 Finished goods (Gross) 1,317,662,455 1,280,720,000 
Less : Excise Duty recovered on sales 120,352,696 121,469,417 

    1,197,309,759 1,159,250,583 
 Traded goods 253,706 30,826 

    1,197,563,465 1,159,281,409 
Details of Products sold: 
 (i) Finished goods 
  Pigments 588,028,918 562,642,915 
  Detergents 38,878,177 73,743,300 
  Sulphonati on 690,755,360 644,333,785 

    1,317,662,455 1,280,720,000 
 (ii) Traded goods 253,706 30,826 

    1,317,916,161 1,280,750,826 
Sale of power from Wind turbine generators 17,343,743 25,327,158 

    1,214,907,208 1,184,608,567 
Income from services
 Income from processing 11,612,749 30,642,999 
 Income from IT enabled services 250,819,039 164,210,379 
 Income from BPO acti viti es 24,775,190 20,508,830 

    287,206,978 215,362,208 
Other operati ng income
 Export Incenti ves 2,424,494 1,532,822 
    2,424,494 1,532,822 

Revenue from operati ons 1,504,538,679 1,401,503,596 

Note 3.19 : Other Income
Interest received
 From banks 5,013,540 7,564,224 
 From companies on short term deposits 4,309,906 4,592,254 
 From others 202,288 5,691,755 
Dividend received - from long term investments 5,112,943 10,225,885 
Rent received   - 6,635
Sundry receipts (see Note below) 15,921,357 3,260,986 
Sundry balances writt en back (net ) - 2,684,142 
Gain on foreign curency transacti ons  / translati ons (net) -  3,860,224 

Total    30,560,034 37,886,105 

Note: Sundry receipts include Rs.1,45,60,000/- received on maturity of Keyman Insurance policy 
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 (Amount in rupees)

    Year ended  Year ended 
    31.03.2014 31.03.2013

Note 3.20 : Cost of material consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year 20,166,824 84,234,748 
Add  :  Purchases 634,643,037 548,848,227 
    654,809,861 633,082,975 
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 27,930,954 20,166,824 

Cost of  material consumed 626,878,907 612,916,151 

Details of materials consumed
 Soda Ash  58,669,074 52,803,496 
 Acti ve Matt er 434,074,808 437,068,103 
 Sulphur  34,030,889 37,744,395 
 China Clay 23,305,730 18,750,001 
 Others  76,798,406 66,550,157 

Total    626,878,907 612,916,151 

Note: The above fi gures have been ascertained on the basis of opening stock plus purchases less closing stock and 
therefore, include adjustments of excesses and shortages ascertained on physcial count, write off  of un-serviceable 
items, etc.

Note 3.21 : Changes in inventories of Finished goods and work-in-progress

Inventories at the end of the year
Work-in-progress 36,637,800 21,393,800 
Finished goods  70,728,700 62,842,558 

Total    107,366,500 84,236,358 

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work-in-progress 21,393,800 16,614,800 
Finished goods  62,842,558 42,931,050 

    84,236,358 59,545,850 

Net (Increase)/decrease in Stocks (23,130,142) (24,690,508)

(Increase)/decrease in work in progress 
    Pigments  (15,244,000) (4,779,000)

Total    (15,244,000) (4,779,000)

(Increase)/decrease in fi nished goods
    Pigments  (9,071,700) (6,561,400)
    Detergents  54,474 (1,963,201)
    Sulphonati on 1,131,084 (11,386,907)

Total    (7,886,142) (19,911,508)
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 (Amount in rupees)

    Year ended  Year ended 
    31.03.2014 31.03.2013

Note 3.22 : Employee benefi ts expense
Salaries, Wages, Bonus and other benefi ts 218,261,241 198,684,043 
Directors' Remunerati on 24,746,412 17,480,264 
Contributi on to Provident Fund and other funds 18,166,835 17,042,219 
Gratuity expenses 2,896,100 7,336,763 
Staff  Welfare and ameniti es 14,549,789 12,265,043 

Total    278,620,377 252,808,332 

Note 3.23 : Finance costs
Interest on term loan 4,205,478 7,431,488 
Interest on deferred payments 260,028 3,509,090 
Interest on income tax payments 637,874 275,000 
Other borrowing costs 4,464,681 4,415,249 

Total    9,568,061 15,630,827 

Note 3.24 : Other expenses
Consumpti on of stores and Spares 8,043,892 6,436,021 
Power and Fuel 135,266,278 139,118,190 
Excise Duty on stocks ( Net) 2,464,812 (467,536)
Repairs and Maintenance: 
 Machinery 18,155,262 21,886,963 
 Buildings  10,685,449 11,123,387 
 Others  4,591,901 4,189,888 
Packing Expenses and materials consumed 23,412,843 29,232,733 
Processing Charges paid 6,353,468 3,976,237 
Freight and Forwarding expenses 22,638,488 24,554,881 
Insurance   4,365,222 4,107,664 
Commission on sales 2,243,238 1,217,209 
Adverti sement and Sales Promoti on expenses 10,227,344 10,287,778 
Rent    22,761,860 21,188,999 
Rates & Taxes  2,331,355 1,945,821 
Travelling expenses 21,551,227 20,678,424 
Communicati on expenses 6,951,152 8,558,153 
Legal and Professional Fees 16,600,480 8,130,622 
Commission to Non Executi ve Directors 2,474,641 1,748,027 
Donati on   5,527,000 5,002,000 
Assets Scrapped / Loss on Sale of Assets ( net ) 3,589,916 800,671 
Loss on foreign currency transacti ons  / translati ons (net) 1,110,033 -   
Prior period expenses 369,197 668,269 
Sundry balances writt en off  (net ) 560,464 -   
Miscellaneous expenses 38,716,120 27,017,674 

Total    370,991,642 351,402,075 
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 (Amount in rupees)

    As at As at
    31.03.2014 31.03.2013

Payment to Auditors (included in miscellaneous expenses)

As auditors: 

 Audit Fees 700,000 700,000 

 Tax audit fees 125,000 125,000 

 Certi icati on 370,000 340,000 

In other capacity:

 Taxati on matt ers 75,000 75,000

 Other services 100,000 150,000 

 Service tax 169,332 171,804 

Total    1,539,332 1,561,804

Note 4 : Other disclosures as per revised schedule VI

Note 4.1 : Conti ngent liabiliti es and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

(a) Conti ngent liabiliti es

 (i) Claims against the Company/disputed liabiliti es not acknowledged 
  as debts in respect of labour disputes 480,000 480,000 

 (ii) Bank Guarantees issued and outstanding 478,381 380,000 

(b) Commitments

 (i) Esti mated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 
  capital account and not provided for -  2,015,177 

  Against which advance paid - 441,700 

 (ii) Import duty on Goods imported under advance licence pending 
  fulfi lment of export obligati on -  5,683,937 

 (iii)  The Company had entered into an agreement on 28th April, 2011 with Gujarat Industrial Development 
Corportati on (GIDC) for allotment of land at Dahej. The Company has acquired the land at Dahej-Petroleum, 
Chemicals and Petro Chemicals Investment Region (PCIR) in Gujarat with the intenti on of expanding its 
surfactant chemicals manufacturing and processing operati ons.  As per the said agreement, the Company 
within a period of two years from the agreement date is required to build factory. However, due to delay 
in the availability of adequate infrastructure (including water supply),  the proposed expansion is likely 
to be delayed.  As per the agreement with the GIDC the Company is liable to pay penalty for delay in 
implementati on of the project. As on 31st March 2014, Rs. 13,29,770 has been provided for in the books 
of account towards the same.



52

53rd Annual Report 2013-14Ultramarine & Pigments Ltd

Notes forming part of fi nancial statements for the year ended 31st March 2014 
 (Amount in rupees)

    As at  As at
    31.03.2014 31.03.2013

[c]  No provision has been made in respect of the following demands raised 
by the authoriti es since the Company has reasons to believe that it would 
get relief at the appellate stage as the said demands are excessive and 
erroneous

 (i) By the Income tax authoriti es (fully deposited with tax authoriti es) 57,061,890 51,302,944 

 (ii) Interest and penalty on account of the alleged delay in payment of dues 
  under the ESI Act 108,119 108,119 

 (iii) Sales Tax Authoriti es 1,015,810 1,268,806 

Note 4.2 : Value of imports calculated on CIF basis (on accrual basis) 

 Raw materials 337,979,520 228,445,731 

 Spare parts - 1,456,856 

 Capital goods 10,359,156  65,599 

Note 4.3 :  (a) Expenditure in Foreign Currency

  Travelling 5,145,003 5,895,220 

  Soft ware Expenses 140,917 31,735 

  Legal and Professional Fees 8,612,967 -   

  Other matt ers 157,849 77,601 

 (b) Details of consumpti on of imported and indigenous items

    For the year ended For the year ended   
    31st March 2014  31st March, 2013

    (Rs.) % (Rs.) %

  Imported

  Raw materials 364,771,209 58.19 286,014,977 46.66 

  Indigenous

  Raw materials 262,107,697 41.81 326,901,174 53.34 

  Consumpti on of stores and components is 100% indigenous.

Note  4.4 : Remitt ance in foreign currencies on account of dividends 2014 2013

 (i) No. of Non-Resident shareholders None None

 (ii) No. of shares held by them NA NA

Note 4.5 : Earnings in foreign currencies (on accrual basis) 2014 2013

 Export of  goods calculated on FOB basis 222,123,345 252,259,145

 Income from IT enabled services 250,819,039 164,210,379
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 (Amount in rupees)

    Year ended  Year ended 
    31.03.2014 31.03.2013

Note 5 : Disclosures in accordance with  Accounti ng Standards (AS)

Note 5.1 : (AS)-15 Employee benefi ts
 Defi ned contributi on plans
  The Company makes Provident Fund and Superannuati on Fund contributi ons to defi ned contributi on plans for 

qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specifi ed percentage of the 
payroll costs to fund the benefi ts. The contributi ons payable by the Company are at rates specifi ed in the rules 
of the schemes.

 I. Defi ned Contributi on Plans:
  The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profi t and Loss: 

          Parti culars Y.E. 31.03.2014 Y.E. 31.03.2013 
  a. Contributi on to Employees Provident Fund * 12,499,973 12,170,492 
  b. Contributi on to Employees State Insurance Scheme 3,999,665 3,773,552 
  c. Contributi on to Employees Superannuati on Fund 1,768,511 3,427,114 

  Total  18,268,149 19,371,158 

  *  Includes contributi on of Rs.105,000 (Previous year Rs. 1,260,000) Included in Director's Remunerati on.

 II. Defi ned Benefi t Plans:

  (i)  Gratuity is payable to all the members at the rate of 15 days salary for each completed year of 
service.

   1. Changes in the Present Value of Obligati on in respect of gratuity benefi ts

          Parti culars Y. E. 31.03.2014 Y. E. 31.03.2013 
    a. Present Value of Obligati on as at April 1, 2013 42,218,309 37,742,849 
    b. Interest Cost 3,377,465 3,208,142 
    c. Past Service Cost Nil Nil
    d. Current Service Cost 3,227,664 2,416,601 
    e. Curtailment Cost / (Credit) Nil Nil
    f. Sett lement Cost / (Credit) Nil Nil
    g. Benefi ts Paid (17,308,871) (3,052,921)
    h. Actuarial (Gain) / Loss (3,666,566) 1,903,638 
    I. Present Value of Obligati on as at March 31, 2014 27,848,001 42,218,309 

   2. Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profi t and Loss  in respect of gratuity benefi ts

          Parti culars Y. E. 31.03.2014 Y. E. 31.03.2013 
    a. Current Service Cost 3,227,664 2,416,601 
    b. Past Service Cost Nil Nil
    c. Interest Cost 3,377,465 3,208,142 
    d. Curtailment Cost / (Credit) Nil Nil
    e. Sett lement Cost / (Credit) Nil Nil
    f. Net Actuarial (Gain) / Loss (3,666,566) 1,903,638 

    g. Total Expenses recognised in Statement of Profi t and Loss 2,938,563 7,528,381 
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 (Amount in rupees)

          Parti culars Y. E. 31.03.2014 Y. E. 31.03.2013 
      Gratuity Gratuity

   3. Following are the Principal Actuarial Assumpti ons used

    a. Discount Rate 9.29% 8.00%
    b. Salary Escalati on Rate 7.00% 7.00%
    c. Turnover Rate 10.00% 10.00%
    d. Mortality Table LIC (1994-96) LIC (1994-96)
      Ulti mate Ulti mate

    Experience Adjustment: 

            For the year ended 31st March 
   2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

On plan Liability (Gains) / Loss  (1,592,628) 129,027 599,564 1,115,955 (544,647)
On plan Assets (Gains) / Loss  -  -  - -  -   

 Other Long Term benefi ts

  The Company's Long Term benefi t includes Leave encashment payable at the ti me of reti rement in full, or 
encashable during the year in which services are rendered subject to limit of  90 days.  Present value of 
obligati on as at the beginning of the year is Rs.15,660,667 (Prev. Year Rs. 13,960,343) and the actuarial gains 
and losses recognised in full in the Statement of Profi t and Loss is Rs. 935,452 (Prev. Year Rs.1,700,284).  The 
present value of obligati on as at March 31,2014 is Rs. 16,596,079 (Prev. Year Rs. 15,660,627).

  The esti mates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuati on take account of infl ati on, seniority, 
promoti on and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market. 

Note 5.2 :  Disclosure requirement of accounti ng Standard 17 "Segment Reporti ng" issued under Companies 
(Accounti ng Standards) Rules 2006. 

 a.  Primary Segments 
   The Company has disclosed Business Segment as the primary segment.  Segments have been identi fi ed 

taking into account the nature of the products, the diff ering risks and returns, the organisati on structure 
and internal reporti ng system. The Company's operati ons predominantly relate to manufacture of 
Laundry and Allied products and its intermediaries and providing IT Enabled Services & BPO acti viti es and 
generati on of power from wind turbine. 

 b. Secondary Segments

   The Company caters mainly to the needs of the domesti c market. The export turnover is not signifi cant 
(except IT Enabled Services Division) in the context of total turnover. As such there are no reportable 
geographical segments.  The income  from IT Enabled Services is pre-dominantly from exports.

 c.  Segment Revenue, Segment Results, Segment Assets and Segment Liabiliti es include the respecti ve 
amounts identi fi able to each of the segments as also amounts allocated on a reasonable basis. The 
expenses, which are not directly att ributable to the business segment, are shown as unallocated corporate 
cost.

 d.  Assets and Liabiliti es that cannot be allocated between the segments are shown as a part of unallocated 
corporate assets and liabiliti es respecti vely. 

 e. Inter Segment transfers are made on cost plus basis.
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 (Amount in rupees)

      Year ended 31.03.2014 Year ended 31.03.2013

      Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

1. Revenue

 External Revenue 

 Laundry and Allied Products 1,211,600,708  1,191,457,232

 IT Enabled Services & BPO acti viti es 275,594,229  184,719,209 

 Wind Turbine Generator 19,660,245  25,327,158 

 Total      1,506,855,181  1,401,503,598 

 Less : Eliminati on ( Inter Segment Revenue )  2,316,502  2,617,582 

       1,504,538,679  1,398,886,016 

2. Result

 Profi t/(Loss) before Interest and Corporate 
 Expenses but aft er Depreciati on/Amorti sati on

 Laundry and Allied Products 169,805,625  185,171,046 

 IT Enabled Services & BPO acti viti es 56,267,494  5,220,514 

 Wind Turbine Generator (7,439,977)  1,919,276 

 Total      218,633,143  192,310,836 

 Interest and Finance charges  (9,568,061)  (15,630,827)

 Add:  Unallocated Expenses/
   Income(Net) and Corporate Expenses  6,813,972  (3,017,702)

 Provision for Tax   (75,500,000)  (58,800,000)

 Excess/(Short) Provision for Taxati on for
 earlier years writt en back/(off )  (146,000)  4,799,887 

 Deferred Tax    3,716,668  1,575,276 

 Net Profi t     143,949,722  121,237,470 

Other Informati on 

3. Segment Assets 

 Laundry and Allied Products 659,073,543  613,705,789 

 IT Enabled Services & BPO acti viti es 117,956,418  82,035,136 

 Wind Turbine Generator 126,675,053  165,069,696 

 Unallocated/Corporate 366,644,013  329,525,352 

 Total      1,270,349,026  1,190,335,973 
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Notes forming part of fi nancial statements for the year ended 31st March 2014 
 (Amount in rupees)
      Year ended 31.03.2014 Year ended 31.03.2013

      Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
4. Segment Liabiliti es 
 Laundry and Allied Products 129,673,283  91,199,722
 IT Enabled Services & BPO acti viti es 40,213,532  19,029,305
 Unallocated/Corporate 178,749,424  216,937,531

 Total      348,636,239  327,166,558

5. Capital Expenditure 
 Laundry and Allied Products 58,925,252  26,384,576
 IT Enabled Services & BPO acti viti es 17,028,391  7,401,808
 Unallocated/Corporate -   1,732,161

       75,953,643 35,518,545 

6. Depreciati on 
 Laundry and Allied Products 30,336,912  29,159,721
 IT Enabled Services & BPO acti viti es 5,396,814  8,156,452
 Wind Turbine Generator 19,986,285  19,986,285
 Unallocated/Corporate 398,164  329,015

 Total      56,118,175  57,631,473

Note 5.3 :  Related Party Disclosures as required by AS 18 of Companies (Accounti ng Standards) Rules 
2006 is as follows: 

(A) Related Parti es and Relati onship

 (a)  Companies in which the company has substanti al interest (i.e more than 20% in voti ng power directly 
or indirectly) 

  Thirumalai Chemicals Limited
  Lapiz Inc, U.S.A.

 (b) Other related parti es
  Thirumalai Charity Trust
  Chempak Industries
  Hamsa Investments Associates Pvt. Ltd.
  Varadaraja Credits & Investments Pvt. Ltd.
  Meera Parthasarathy 
  S. Srinath

 (c) Key Management Personnel:  

  Mr. R. Sampath,  Chairman & Managing Director 
  Mr. S. Sridhar, Joint Managing Director 
  Mrs. Indira Sundararajan, Wholeti me Director 
  Mr. V. Bharatram, President(Operati ons), IT-Enabled Services and BPO acti viti es Division. 
  Mr. B. Sreenivasacharyulu - Senior General Manager
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Notes forming part of fi nancial statements for the year ended 31st March 2014 
 (Amount in rupees)
B.  Details of transacti ons with above parti es :
   Parti culars Companies in  Other Key Total
    which company  related Management
    has the substanti al parti es Personnel
    interest   

    (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)
Purchase of goods
 - Thirumalai Chemicals Limited 3,737   3,737
     -   - 
Sale of goods 
 - Thirumalai Chemicals Limited 40,764   40,764 
    (37,056)   (37,056)
Income from IT Enabled Services
  -  LAPIZ Inc. USA 214,526,650   214,526,650
    (138,269,097)   (138,269,097)
Reimbursement of expenses paid
 - Thirumalai Chemicals Limited -    -
       (44,898)   (44,898)
Remunerati on paid to 
 - Mr. V. Bharathram   3,457,855 3,457,855 
      (3,147,026) (3,147,026)
 - Mr. B. Sreenivasacharyulu   2,667,380 2,667,380 
      (2,422,324) (2,422,324)
 - Ms. Meera Parthasarathy  1,368,560  1,368,560 
     (1,204,548)  (1,204,548)
 - Mr. S. Srinath  185,629  185,629 
     (266,550)  (266,550)
 - Mr. S. Santhanam   2,474,641  2,474,641   
      (1,748,027) (1,748,027)
Remunerati on to Directors
 - Mr. R. Samapth, Chairman & Managing Director   8,248,804 8,248,804 
      (6,555,099) (6,555,099)
 - Mr. S. Sridhar, Joint Managing Director   8,248,804 8,248,804 
      (4,370,066) (4,370,066)
 - Ms.Indira Sundararajan, Wholeti me Director   8,248,804 8,248,804 
      (6,555,099) (6,555,099)
Reimbursement of expenses received
 - Thirumalai Chemicals Limited 84,270   84,270 
    -    -   
Rent paid to
 - Thirumalai Chemicals Limited 4,063,942   4,063,942 
    (4,110,417)   (4,110,417)
Rendering of Services to
 - Thirumalai Chemicals Limited 28,090   28,090 
    (235,956)   (235,956)
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Notes forming part of fi nancial statements for the year ended 31st March 2014 
 (Amount in rupees)
B.  Details of transacti ons with above parti es :
   Parti culars Companies in  Other Key Total
    which company  related Management
    has the substanti al parti es Personnel
    interest   

    (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)
Receiving of services from
 - Thirumalai Chemicals Limited 96,857   96,857 
    (94,748)   (94,748)
 - Hamsa Investments Associates Pvt Ltd  1,818,939  1,818,939 
     (1,198,239)  (1,198,239)
 - Varadharaja Credits & Investments Pvt Ltd.  722,019  722,019 
     (2,233,966)  (2,233,966)
Outstanding payables
 - Thirumalai Chemicals Limited 322,278   322,278 
    (69,473)   (69,473)
 - Hamsa Investments Associates Pvt Ltd  104,889  104,889 
     (53,861)  (53,861)
 - Varadharaja Credits & Investments Pvt Ltd.  13,706  13,706 
     (7,581)  (7,581)
Directors Remunerati on Payables
 - Mr. R. Sampath   3,078,838 3,078,838 
      (228,331) (228,331)
 - Ms.Indira Sundararajan   2,371,020 2,371,020 
      -  -   
 - Mr. S. Sridhar   2,511,706 2,511,706 
      (570,066) (570,066)
 - Mr. S. Santhanam   2,474,641 2,474,641 
      (1,748,027) (1,748,027)
Directors Remunerati on Recoverable
 - Ms.Indira Sundararajan   -  -   
      (815,441) (815,441)
Outstanding receivables
 - Thirumalai Chemicals Limited -    -   
    (6,999)   (6,999)
 - LAPIZ Inc. USA  38,240,968  38,240,968 
     (29,348,842)  (29,348,842)
Donati ons paid 
 - Thirumalai Charity Trust  5,500,000  5,500,000
     (5,000,000)  (5,000,000)
Deposits given 
 - Thirumalai Chemicals Limited -    -   
    (13,642,774)   (13,642,774)
Interest income on deposits given
 - Thirumalai Chemicals Limited -    -   
    (232,558)   (232,558)
Outstanding deposits receivables
 - Thirumalai Chemicals Limited 1,400,000   1,400,000 
    (1,400,000)   (1,400,000)
Meeti ng fees paid to Non Executi ve Directors  Rs. 9,86,098 (Prev. Year Rs. 10,64,048) including Service Tax.
(c) The sum of Rs. 481,972 receivable from LAPIZ Inc. has been writt en off  during the year.
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Notes forming part of fi nancial statements for the year ended 31st March 2014 
 (Amount in rupees)

Note 5.4 : AS 19 Details of Leasing arangements

The Company has taken certain premises for offi  ce use and godown under cancellable / non-cancellable lease 
agreements. Some of these agreements have a price escalati on clause. Details of Lease rental payments and future 
lease rental commitment under non-cancellable lease are as under : 

    2013-14 2012-13

Lease rental charged in the Statement of Profi t & Loss 22,761,860 28,215,040

Future minimum lease commitment

 Payable not later than one year 10,084,500 Nil

 Payable  later than one year and not later than fi ve years 58,509,390 Nil

 Payable  later than fi ve years 24,025,233 Nil

Note 5.5 : AS 20 Disclosure regarding earning per share (EPS)

The  basic and diluted EPS is calculated as under:

Profi t att ributed to equity shareholders (Rs) 143,949,722 121,237,470

No. of equity shares (of Rs.2 each) 29,200,000 29,200,000

Earning per share 4.93 4.15

Note 5.6 : Disclosures as required by AS 27 fi nancial reporti ng of interest in joint ventures.

The Company has investments in a jointly controlled enti ty as per the following details:

Name and Country of Incorporati on : LAPIZ INC, USA. 

Proporti on of ownership interest : 35.00%

Proporti onate share for the year ended 31st  March 2014 in respect of 

i. Assets  Rs.15,683,453  (Prev. Year Rs.11,937,379)

ii. Liabiliti es  Rs. 14,282,171 (Prev. Year Rs.11,172,347)

iii. Income  Rs.72,981,330  (Prev. Year Rs.51,519,347)

iv. Expenses  Rs.72,188,515  (Prev. Year Rs.50,380,639)

Note 6.1 : The Company has incurred Research and Development expenses as under:

          Parti culars 2013-14 2012-13

 On Capital Account :

 Lab Equipment 203,346 167,253 

 On Revenue Account (included in Miscellaneous expenses in Note No. 3.24):

 Salaries & Allowances 4,704,956 -   

 Contributi ons to Providend fund and other funds 352,227 -   

 Chemicals and Consumables 1,197,473 906,583 

 Other expenses 93,297 41,289 

 Total   6,551,299 1,115,125 
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Notes forming part of fi nancial statements for the year ended 31st March 2014 
 (Amount in rupees)

Note 6.2 : Disclosures required as per Micro, small and medium enterprises development act, 2006.

  The disclosure regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been made  to the extent such parti es have been 
identi fi ed.

          Parti culars 2013-14 2012-13

 (i) Interest payable  to the suppliers as at the end of the accounti ng year 830,387 830,387

 (ii)  The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Sec.16 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 alongwith 
the amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during each accounti ng year Nil Nil

 (iii)  The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding the interest specifi ed under the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act Nil Nil

 (iv)  The amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 
accounti ng year. 830,387 830,387

 (v)  The amount of further interest remaining due and payable  in the 
succeeding years, unti l such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as 
deducti ble expenditure u/s 23 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 Nil Nil

Note 6.3 : As at the year end, the exposure in foreign currency of the Company is as under:

  Parti culars 2013-14 2012-13

    Foreign Currency Amt in Rs. Foreign Currency Amt in Rs.

 Account Receivable $889,212.22 53,085,970 $1,142,684.67 61,796,387 
    £54,151.08 5,360,415 - -

 Accounts Payable $569,725.47 34,308,868 - -
    £491.66 48,669 £35,704.25 2,915,252 

 Forward Contract outstanding at the  - - $100,000.00 5,408,000
 year end for hedging accounts payable - - £679.26 55,462

Note 6.4 :  Previous years fi gures have been regrouped / reclassifi ed wherever neccessary to correspond with the 
current year`s classifi cati on / disclosure. 

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For & on behalf of
CNK & ASSOCIATES LLP  R. SAMPATH
Chartered Accountants  Chairman & Managing Director

H. V. KISHNADWALA KISHORE KUMAR SAHOO GOPAKUMAR G. NAIR
Partner Company Secretary Director

Chennai 
27th May, 2014
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS FOR 10 YEARS
(Rs. In lakhs)

Sl. 
No.

Parti culars 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06 2004-05

1 Share capital 584 584 584 584 584 584 584 584 584 365 

2 Reserves & surplus 8,633 8,048 7,604 7,253 6,573 7,415 6,706 6,205 5,365 4,756 

3 Net Worth 9,217 8,632 8,188 7,837 7,157 7,999 7,290 6,789 5,949 5,121 

4 Fixed Assets (Net) 4,215 4,296 4,526 4,072 2,973 3,196 2,243 2,122 2,136 2,282 

5 Sales/ Other Income 15,351 14,394 13,825 12,372 10,839 11,125 8,832 8,139 6,342 6,363 

6 Gross Profi t 
before Interest & 
Depreciati on

2,816 2,469 2,548 2,880 2,120 2,276 2,347 2,866 2,073 2,050 

7 Interest & Finance 
Charges

96 156 171 41 90 74 29 20 19 28 

8 Depreciati on 561 576 550 427 430 346 285 284 278 301 

9 Current Tax (incl. 
Fringe Benefi t Tax)

(755) (588) (371) (771) (671) (156) (563) (413) (332) (328)

10 Defered Tax 36 64 (86) 60 149 (278) 49 37 24 105 

11 Net Profi t aft er Tax 1,440 1,212 1,369 1,701 1,078 1,422 1,519 2,186 1,469 1,499 

12 Dividend (incl. 
Dividend Tax)

854 769 1,018 1,021 1,021 683 1,025 1,170 732 624 

13 Dividend (%) 125.00 112.50 150.00 150.00 150.00 100.00 150.00 175.00 110.00 150.00

14 *Earnings Per share  
(Rs)

4.93 4.15 4.69 5.83 3.69 4.77 5.22 6.88 5.34 41.06

* EPS from 2005-06 computed on Rs.2 per share while for previous EPS is on Rs.10 per share.
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Visit us: www.vedavallividyalaya.org
Tel: +91-4172-231860, 230870

E-mail: vedavalli94@yahoo.com

The Akshaya Vidya Trust
Vedavalli Vidyalaya Senior Secondary School, Walaja (CBSE) 1994
Vedavalli Higher Secondary School, Walaja (State Board) 1999
Vedavalli Vidyalaya Nursery & Primary & Senior Secondary School,
Ranipet (CBSE) 2003

Two decades in Education

The main aim of our schools has been to provide an all round 
development and quality education for the children. We have over 
2300 students, 135 teaching and 85 support staff. Every year the 
children are exposed to new programmes within the school and are 
encouraged to participate in programmes conducted by other 
schools and colleges. To provide a secular atmosphere, the 
children celebrate different religious festivals like Ramzan, Navratri 
and Christmas. Many other special programmes like the UN day, 
World AIDs day, Anti Drugs day and Women’s day are also 
conducted. This year some new programmes like the Traffic Day 
for Kindergarten and the School Carnival were introduced. The 
traffic park and the stalls in the carnival were completely organised 
by the students. A sum of Rs. 50,000 was raised through the carnival 
and was contributed to the Prime Minister’s Relief Fund. All the 
school events are conducted by students, giving them hands on 
experience on team work and events management.

The children of our schools are given exposure of various kinds. 
Field trips to museums, post office, fire station, factories and 
historical places are among a few places they visit. Within the 
school, they get exposure to different vocations such as cooking, 
stitching, plumbing, self defence, and gardening, to name a few. 
They also interact with visitors to the school.

Our core beliefs have been to provide a fear free environment for 
learning and learning by doing. The teachers of our school have 
been a continuous support for the execution of these core beliefs. 
To facilitate this in the classrooms, our teachers go through training 
and attend various workshops for better understanding. Seminars 
on varied topics on education are conducted during the year for the 
benefit of the teachers. During our 7th Annual Smt. Sathyabama 
Teachers’ Seminar, we had stalwarts in education to talk about 
“Integrating Sports and art in Education”.

The schools have impressive infrastructural facilities with well 
ventilated rooms, labs, libraries, AV rooms, playgrounds, auditorium, 
and greenery around to offer an excellent environment for learning. 
Every aspect of Vedavalli Vidyalaya, from curriculum design to 
classroom planning, is carefully and creatively planned, to ensure a 
congenial atmosphere for academic pursuit and individual growth.

We are proud as our alumni stand out in their work places and as 
our students, stand tall ready to face the future. 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

Thirumalai Charity Trust
Thirumalai Charity Trust (TCT), set up in 1970 has been working on 

rural healthcare, women empowerment, disability, de-addiction and 

village development for more than 3 decades. TCT is currently active 

in 315 villages in Vellore District of Tamil Nadu and is managing the 

Thirumalai Mission Hospital at Ranipet.

Our Thirumalai Mission Hospital (TMH) was started in April 2010. 

TMH addresses major medical problems in the community such as 

Diabetes, Hypertension, Osteoporosis, Cancer in Women and Obesity in 

appropriate screening and intervention programmes. Our Primary 

Healthcare team supports these programmes and involves village based 

volunteers and community based organizations to provide follow up care. 

The TMH is well equipped for OP and IP services in General Medicine, 

General Surgery, Orthopaedics, Obstetrics and Gynaecology, Paediatrics, 

Emergency, E.N.T., Dentistry and Physiotherapy. The services are 

supported by good laboratory and other diagnostic facilities. Eye and 

Cardiology camps are conducted periodically and patients requiring 

surgery and other treatment are referred for care and follow-up. 

The hospital built with ground and two floors, has a built up area of 

15,000 sq. feet. It offers a good ambience for patients along with 

friendly and compassionate staff.

We now propose to continue our rehabilitation service for families 

suffering from alcoholism in our hospital. We are also planning to start 

ophthalmic and intensive medical care services. 

TCT needs your support in its mission.We invite you to see our activities. 

TCT’s Integrated Primary and Secondary Healthcare Project offers 

100% tax exemption to its donors. Please visit our website 

www.thirumalaicharitytrust.org and contact admin@tmhospital.org 

for any further details. 

TCT is working towards

   Catalyzing rural people to build sustainable communities and improve 

   their quality of life

   Mobilizing and motivating women volunteers for grassroots work

   Building community based organizations with local leaders

   Creating ripple effects in the community as beneficiaries become change

   agents

  Developing and delivering a unique model of accessible, affordable 

    primary and secondary healthcare
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Proxy Form
(Pursuant to Secti on 105 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administrati on) Rules, 2014

Name of  member(s)

Registered address

Email

Folio No. / Client ID 

DP ID  

I / We, being the member(s) of ..………………........................…… shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint

Name: ……………………………………………….........…………………………. Email …………………………….........…………………………………

Address: …………………………….................…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….

…...............………………………………………………………………………………  Signature: ………………………………………………

Or failing him / her

Name: ……………………………………………….........…………………………. Email …………………………….........…………………………………

Address: …………………………….................…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….

………................…………………………………………………………………………  Signature: ………………………………………………

Or failing him / her

Name: ……………………………………………….........…………………………. Email …………………………….........…………………………………

Address:…………………………….................…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….

………..................…………………………………………………………………………  Signature: ………………………………………………

as my / our proxy to att end and vote (on a poll) for me / us  and on my/our behalf at the 53rd Annual General 
Meeti ng of the Company, to be held on the Thursday of 7th August, 2014 at 3.30 p.m at  THE MYSORE ASSOCIATION 
AUDITORIUM, Mysore Associati on, 393, Bhaudaji Road, Matunga-C.Rly. Mumbai – 400 019 and at any adjournment 
thereof in respect of such resoluti ons as are indicated below:

(Contd…)



Resoluti on 
No.

RESOLUTIONS
Vote(Opti onal see Note 2*) 

Please menti on No. of shares

Ordinary Business For Against

1. Consider and adopt audited fi nancial statement for the fi nancial year ended 
31.03.2014, Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors

2. Declarati on of Dividend.

3. Re-appointment of  Mr. S. Sridhar who reti res by rotati on 

4. Appointment of Auditors and fi xing their remunerati on

Special Business

5. Appointment of Dr. Gopakumar G. Nair as an Independent Director

6. Appointment of Mr. Vinod G. Nehemiah as an Independent Director

7. Appointment of Mr. Nimish U. Patel as an Independent Director

8. Appointment of Mr. T.R. Madhavan as an Independent Director

9. Approval of the Remunerati on of the Cost Auditor

Signed this …………....................................... Day of…………………................…….,2014 

……………………………………….                      …………………………………………..
Signature of the member                                   Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: 

 1.  This form of Proxy in order to be eff ecti ve should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered offi  ce of the Company, 
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeti ng.

*2.  It is opti onal to indicate your preference. If you leave the for or against column blank against any or all Resoluti ons, your 
Proxy will be enti tled to vote in the manner as he / she may deem appropriate.

 3. Please complete all details including details of member(s) in above box before submission.

Affi  x 
Revenue Stamp 

here
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Att endance Slip

Registered  Folio No. / DP ID No. / Client ID No.:

Number of shares held

I certi fy that I am a member / proxy for the member of the Company

I hereby record my presence at the 53rd Annual General Meeti ng of the Company at THE MYSORE ASSOCIATION AUDITORIUM, 

Mysore Associati on, 393, Bhaudaji Road, Matunga- C. Rly. Mumbai – 400 019 on Thursday, 7th August, 2014 at 3.30 p.m.

…………………………………………………..                                                                       …………………………………………
 Name of  Member /Proxy’                                                                                               Signature of the member /proxy
( in BLOCK Lett ers )

Note : Please fi ll up this att endance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeti ng hall. Members are requested to bring their copies of 
the Annual Report at the AGM






